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Directors and Senior Management
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As at 6 March 2014, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, aged 67, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
worked as a professor at Peking University thereafter. Prior to joining
the Group in 2001, Mr. Cheung was a chairman of a company listed
in the PRC, namely Founder Technology Group Corporation, and a
director of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely Founder Holdings Limited,
and has work experience in international trade, finance, asset
management and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was honoured with
many awards, including being selected as the young entrepreneur
with outstanding contribution to China, and won the first prize of
national golden award for enterprise initiators in the 4th National
Technology Industrialist Award.

KUI MAN CHUN Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, aged 47, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Peking University in the
PRC with a master’s degree in international relations and has over 24
years of experience in the information technology industry and
investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman, chief executive
officer and a director of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”), the Company’s
substantial shareholder. Prior to joining HSL in 2000, Mr. Kui was the
president of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the Group in 2000.

XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, aged 45, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the Dalian University of Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science and engineering. Mr. Xu is also a director
of HSL. Prior to joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Xu was the president
of a system integration company and has extensive experience in
computer systems integration of the financial industry.
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Directors and Senior Management

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, aged 50, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree
in law. He has over 24 years of experience in investment and
administrative affairs. Mr. Li is also a director of HSL. Prior to joining
HSL in 1999, he had worked for several companies in the PRC and
Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Li has also been
appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company, since 24
February 2010.

XU CHANG JUN

Mr. Xu, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree
in international economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr.
Xu had worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. He
has over 24 years of experience in corporate management of
enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Non-Executive Director

CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, aged 59, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Chang graduated from the University of Texas at Austin with a
bachelor’s degree in Statistics and Operations Research. Mr. Chang
possesses more than 20 years of experience in electronic payments
industry in Southeast Asia, Japan and the Great China. Mr. Chang is
currently the Senior Executive, Global Clients APCEMEA of VISA Inc.
(“VISA”) in Singapore. He was previously VISA’s Greater China
General Manager, Japan General Manager, and senior country
manager for Singapore, Thailand, the Philippines and Indochina. He
joined the Group in 2009.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, aged 51, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 24 years’ experience in
auditing, corporate advisory services as well as financial management
and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently an executive director of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a major red chip company) and
an independent non-executive director of KWG Property Holding
Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in 2004.
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LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, aged 57, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a
postgraduate certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a Juris Doctor degree from the University of
Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong since 1984 and is now a partner of the law firm,
Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public in
Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive working experience in law
both in Hong Kong and in Canada. He served as a member of the
Inland Revenue Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and has been
appointed as a China-appointed Attesting Officer since January 2003.
Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of
China Flavors and Fragrances Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in 2004.

XU SITAO

Mr. Xu, aged 50, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a
bachelor of arts degree in economics and from the University of
Connecticut with a master of arts degree in economics. He also holds
a master of science degree in finance from Boston College. Mr. Xu is
currently the chief representative of China of the Economist Group
and a director of Advisory Services (China) of Economist Intelligence
Unit and an independent director of BNY Mellon Western Fund
Management Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining the Economist Group, he was
a senior economist at Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited in Hong Kong from May 2003 to May 2004 and was the
chief Asian economist of Societe Generale from September 2000 to
November 2002. Between 1996 and 2000, he was a regional treasury
economist at Standard Chartered Bank. Prior to that, he was an
emerging Asia economist of Standard & Poor’s MMS International in
Singapore. He joined the Group in 2001.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Zhao
Yue Hui and Ms. Hui Lok Yan were the Company’s senior
management.

LI WEI

Mr. Li, aged 43, is the chief executive officer of Beijing Hi Sunsray
Information Technology Ltd. He graduated from Beijing University of
Posts and Telecommunications in the PRC, with a master’s degree in
Business Administration. Prior to joining the Group in 2000, Mr. Li
was a senior management member of a company in Beijing. He has
over 20 years of experience in corporate management.

ZHAO YUE HUI

Mr. Zhao, aged 49, is the chief executive officer of Hangzhou PAX
Electronic Technology Limited. He graduated from Zhejiang
University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, and received a
master’s degree in engineering from Tongji University. He has over
14 years of experience in corporate management. He joined the
Group in 2000.

HUI LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, aged 35, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. She graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration. Ms. Hui is currently a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to
joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager of an international
public accountancy firm.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present Hi Sun’s Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Year 2013 is a remarkable year to Hi Sun. Given years of efforts and
exertions, payment processing solutions segment first turned into an
operating profit this year while the operating loss of electronic power
meters and solutions segment was narrowing down despite keen
competition in the market. During the year, segmental EBITDA
(before unallocated items) totaled HK$70.0 million as compared to
segmental EBITDA loss (before unallocated items) of HK$134.1
million in 2012; while profit for the year totaled HK$26.6 million as
compared to a loss of HK$174.5 million in 2012.

Telecommunication solutions segment recorded turnover of
HK$198.6 million, an increase of 18.7% as compared to 2012.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$13.6 million as
compared to HK$5.3 million in 2012. The increase in segmental
turnover and operating profit was mainly contributed by a project
which was substantially completed with most of the expenses
incurred and expensed off in last year, but the final acceptance was
only received from the customer during 2013. Currently, the
provision of nationwide IVR platform and related services to China
Mobile continues to be the major revenue contributor of this segment
while certain new businesses such as animation and comics and
other communication platforms are adding new momentum to our
Group.

Financial solutions segment reported turnover of HK$271.5 million in
2013, an increase of 9.4% as compared to last year. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$11.5 million as compared to
HK$3.3 million in 2012. The increase in segmental revenue and
segmental operating profit is due to our persistent assertion of
creating more stable, sustainable and recurring income streams and
development projects on cross-industry solutions in prior years.
Looking forward, we will extend our edge to financial payment
solutions and other outsourcing opportunities with a view to broaden
the scope of our financial solutions business.

Currently, our payment platform solutions segment is principally
engaged in the operation and development of the nation-wide mobile
payment platform with China Mobile and also providing other
payment platform related solutions and services. During the year,
payment platform solutions segment recorded turnover of HK$102.5
million, an increase of 17.1% as compared to 2012. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$23.4 million as compared to
HK$13.3 million in 2012. We expect that we will continue to benefit
from China Mobile’s unceasing input into its mobile payment
business especially with the launch of new 4G services in December
2013.
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Year 2013 was a very important year to our payment processing
solutions segment. Segmental turnover amounted to HK$399.5
million, 3.9 times up as compared to last year. Segmental operating
profit amounted to HK$8.1 million as compared to a segmental
operating loss of HK$86.5 million in 2012. After years of investment
and development, our payment processing solutions segment now
reached a sizable scale and first turned into profit in 2013. Though
an impairment loss of HK$11.9 million was recorded due to changes
in market conditions to our operations in Japan, our Mainland China
market recorded remarkable growth in the current year. In February
2014, we have granted certain options to its management team as a
recognition to their contribution and motivate them to continue to
contribute to the success and long term development of the payment
processing solutions segment. Looking forward, we will endeavor to
further expand our operations in Mainland China, and strengthen our
compliance and risk control measures to provide a better foundation
for future development.

There were full of challenges to our electronic power meters and
solutions segment in 2013 given the keen market competition and
ever changing technology demands. Segmental turnover increased by
11.3% to HK$310.9 million. With the increase in revenue and
improvement in gross profit margin, segmental operating loss
amounted to HK$11.7 million, a 83.2% down as compared to
HK$69.5 million in 2012. Included in the segmental operating loss of
2012, there was a one-time non-cash impairment charge of HK$24.6
million against the goodwill of our electronic power meters and
solutions business. Our management team will continue to
implement various measures to achieve better operational efficiency.

Combined with our strong financial position, the management will
remain focused on financial and operation disciplines and take hold
of various opportunities for the Group’s business growth in 2014. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers, business
associates and most valued shareholders for their continuous trust
and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2014

Letter from the Board
oo Rk

TR CFHINRGBEEBARAARSEME A
FEEEN—F - 5B HETA399,500,000 %
T BREF LEAIE DEELE RN A
8,100,000 7L M-T—_FHIHEEELE
[E518 86,500,000 8 T - &2 FHRE M - T
ROBEFAF RS ERFEZIRERE TR
ZE-=FEHREFAR BERBAEBMS
AR H B B T 4% 15 R (B /58 11,900,000 8 7T
PEA TSR AFEHSEEER - RZ2F
—OFEZ A - R EBTIRE B LS T B -
LRBESCER  WABESEBEBELAEINRZS
BRIRERF RN RN EREERELER -
REHR  BMEENE - THEPEAME
% ERIGRE R M REREEIERERE  ARRER
BEE SRR

RZZT—=F  ARTSBRF IR E KT
HEY B EEMRBRAS RS EMEAE
PhE; - D EEEEREIE N 11.3% 2 310,900,000 7
T o BEEW AL IR EFEERRE  HELCE
B 18 A11,700,0008 ;L@ 8 = & — = F
69,500,000 7T N 83.2% o —E——F 248
CEFIERER BRI EERRBRTRERZ
2B — IR FEIR £ 8 E F 52 24,600,000 %5
Lo ERBMHEBERL IR  BRIERE
B o

BREAMRBRZMBRR  EREHEEETR
ERREETH  UAREER-_FT-HOF X
BRENEZEHE - RARUBERRESS
MEEP )17 HER  EBBHEREEZ
PRGN B 2 KB (SRR S TR BUA B R

REREFE

E
REE

BB —E—NFE=AH



10 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

—

W85 5y B

Financial Review

CONDENSED SEGMENT RESULT ANALYSIS AR EEBE DT
Turnover EBITDA
= EBITDA
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=f T ZB-=F —T—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T FET T
Telecommunication solutions BABEAT R 1 198,561 167,269 26,440 16,656
Financial solutions S RRR AR 2 272,784 251,533 13,942 8,792
Payment platform solutions SEE R E 3 104,578 89,405 24,333 14,654
Payment processing solutions SRR G RIBAERAE 4 399,521 81,904 24,916 (78,833)
Electronic power meters and solutions B 8E &t S R R 5 22 5 310,924 279,365 (3,955) (57,286)
Others Hith 11,284 4,110 (15,653) (38,035)
Segmental results DEEEE 1,297,652 873,586 70,023 (134,052)
Less: Inter-segment turnover B DEREEER (3,315) (5,280) - -
Total &t ® 1,294,337 868,306 70,023  (134,052)
Depreciation e (38,282) (33,614)
Amortisation Hh (5,270) (7,567)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) AR ERET(E1E) 26,471 (175,233)
Unallocated other income RO BLEMUA 3,853 8,934
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEBERXZ 6 (87,997) (81,382)
Operating loss KRR (57,673) (247,681)
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT SSRGS WER
2013 2012
—B—=£F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Revenue WA A L 1,294,337 868,306
Cost of sales PHERK (810,410) (624,016)
Gross profit EF 483,927 244,290
Other income HUg A 14,170 11,426
Other gains, net H b Y 25 558 1,167 4,221
Selling expenses HERX B (177,700) (131,475)
Administrative expenses THRER B (367,373) (351,543)
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE C (11,864) (24,600)
Operating loss REEE (57,673) (247,681)
Share of profit of an associated company JEAE — ik & A B2 8 A D 92,612 73,616
Loss on dilution of interest in an associated company 7 — RSB & X 7] 2 1 25 #5855 18 D (6,883) =
Finance costs RLE R AR - (1,295)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETS A m A (E518) 28,056 (175,360)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTie®t (Ax), e (1,455) 863
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREA, (B8 26,601 (174,497)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEME R T, (E5i8) ¢
— Equity holders of the Company —ARRRIERFEA 30,045 (160,763)
— Non-controlling interests — JFPER & (3/444) (13,734)
26,601 (174,497)

Earning/(loss) per share for profit/(loss) attributable "2 Az EFHE AEMh

HKS$ per share

HK$ per share

to the equity holders of the Company: wAl (EE) 28R BRET BRETT
BF(BE)

Basic earning/(loss) EAREF(E18) 0.01 (0.06)

Diluted loss BHER (0.01) (0.06)
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Financial Review W5 By
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET RS SEEEREE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2013 2012
—2—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
ASSETS EE
Investment properties, property, plant and REWE - W% - BEEHK
equipment and leasehold land RIS+ E 193,575 165,774
Intangible assets B EE F 68,420 84,198
Interest in an associated company A L /NG o e G 1,561,681 1,458,419
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESREE 30,395 27,267
Inventories & H 76,602 81,310
Trade and bills receivables FE Uit B R K FE U 22 | 345,467 329,748
Receivables from payment processing solutions TR %EI¥%¢/}%E7K¥7I%Z
business FEWY FR TR | 165,797 175,033
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HipfEl s - B RERES | 49,493 42,791
Amount due from an associated company JE W — B & 1 B 508 K 3,451 42
Financial assets at fair value through RATFEF AR EEZ
profit or loss BELE - 13,948
Short-term bank deposits EHISRITER 20,428 19,574
Cash and cash equivalents R RESZED 1,061,136 794,195
Total assets EEHAE 3,576,445 3,192,299
EQUITY =
Share capital A& AR 6,942 6,684
Reserves B 2,752,418 2,619,411
Shareholders’ funds BRREE 2,759,360 2,626,095
Non-controlling interests IR AR (13,384) 55,290
Total equity ERBE 2,745,976 2,681,385
LIABILITIES 8E
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFRISHI B & 1,245 2,307
Trade and bills payables TEHEETA&erE J 157,836 170,576
Payables for payment processing solutions business 371332 5 B I2 ## R 5 RE 7
Z A IR J 243,415 136,414
Other payables H b e 78R J 349,578 191,475
Amount due to an associated company FERT— Fﬁﬁ?ﬁ%@ FIE K 69,964 4,082
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAaE 8,431 6,060
Total liabilities BEAR 830,469 510,914
Total equity and liabilities BEkEERE 3,576,445 3,192,299
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HKS$ per share HK$ per s share
ZRET FRET
Net assets per share BREEFE 0.99 1.00
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT fEA4SHERE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET
Net cash generated from/(used in) BmEERME/ (A
operating activities ReFHE 326,168 (166,783)
Net cash used in investing activities REEBRMARESFHE (47,971) (148,869)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEB T ARSFE (294) (43,857)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and REeRBLEEYEMCRD) FHE
cash equivalents 277,903 (359,509)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzReRREEEYD
beginning of the year 794,195 1,167,201
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEBYMEREE (10,962) (13,497)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZRAERACEZEY
end of the year 1,061,136 794,195 @~
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SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

(M

(2)

Telecommunication solutions

Turnover -
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit AL |

During the year, telecommunication solutions segment
recorded revenues of HK$198.6 million, an increase of 18.7%
as compared to 2012. Segmental operating profit amounted to
HK$13.6 million as compared to HK$5.3 million in 2012. The
increase in segmental turnover and operating profit was mainly
contributed by a project which was substantially completed
with most of the expenses incurred and expensed off in last
year, but the final acceptance was only received from the
customer during the current year. Currently, the provision of
nationwide IVR platform and related services to China Mobile
continues to be the major revenue contributor of this segment.

Financial solutions

Turnover* A e &
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit AL
* Turnover from external customers

Financial solutions segment reported revenues of HK$271.5
million in 2013, an increase of 9.4% as compared to last year.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$11.5 million as
compared to HK$3.3 million in 2012. The increase in
segmental turnover and segmental operating profit was mainly
attributable to additional income from cross-industry solutions
and improved profit margins on a number of projects.

W85 5y B

DERRDM
(1) BRERFR
2013 2012 Change
—F-=F T HE)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FET TAET
198,561 167,269 +18.7%
26,440 16,656 +58.7%
13,638 5,288 +157.9%

(2)

FR BB RFE>EHEFSEA
198,600,000 7T+ 8 — T — — F £ f
18.7% ° DAL &% K 513,600,000 7T -
—Z——%F8)A5,300,00087C - DEEEE
BEREZRFEMEZEHNRE —BE K
BENMIEE - ZBEEMABSAIZER
EFEERTHE HERAFESTWIEF
BN BRT - P BRBHREZEIVR
FERBEBREDABEIIEZEERA
R

SRR R

2013 2012 Change
—E-=F —T——-F )]
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FTHERT FAT
271,532 248,112 +9.4%
13,942 8,792 +58.6%
11,506 3,302 +248.5%

* KESESEP 2 E#EE

SRR EDEN T —=FHEBIA
271,500,000/ 7T * B A F L MN9.4% ° 7
JEAE 5% R A11,500,00008 T —F——
FH/%43,300,00087C - DAL ERE RO
EEEFIEMEZHARREBITERRS
RZFEINIARZEEB HFEEFEIK
ZFTER



SRR (PR R QA

—g-=EEg 13

Financial Review

3

)

Payment platform solutions

Turnover* A e &
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit A

* Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$102.5 million, an increase
of 17.1% as compared to last year. Segmental operating profit
amounted to HK$23.4 million, an increase of 75.9% as
compared to 2012. We expect that we will continue to benefit
from China Mobile’s increasing input into its mobile payment
business especially with the launch of 4G services in December
2013.

Payment processing solutions

Turnover ERE
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit/(loss) M, (EE)

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$399.5 million, an increase
of 387.8% as compared to last year. Segmental operating profit
amounted to HK$8.1 million, as compared to a segmental
operating loss of HK$86.5 million in 2012. Our payment
processing solutions segment is building up transaction volume
and operation scale in Mainland China, leading to an increase
in revenue and an operating profit for the year ended 31
December 2013. Impairment of intangible assets amounted to
HK$11.9 million was recorded in the current year due to the
changes in market conditions to our operations in Japan.

W85 5y B

(3)

XN FEBRFR

2013 2012 Change
2= == gL 0)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FET FHET
102,515 87,546 +17.1%
24,333 14,654 +66.1%
23,390 13,295 +75.9%

@

* KESNESEP 2 E#FE

DAEAEE5102,500,00078 70  BEFIE
M17.1% o 5 F8 48 &% F 523,400,000 75
JC T FIBHN75.9% © FAPITER] -
BMEAPREE oY EBSNRER
BABRMZE  HRREZEREZEHN
ZE—=F+ AL 4CRBEMS R

INRGEEBEATR
2013 2012 Change
—E—-=F —E——fF #E)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +(-)

FHT FHET

399,521 81,904 +387.8%
(11,864) - N/A/T#ER
24,916 (78,833) N/A/ @A
8,050 (86,477) N/A/ @A

DA E 5 /5399,500,000 78 7T © B A F I
h1387.8% ° 0 ¥E 4L & 5 F 48,100,000 7
T MZE—ZFRISEESELEEE
86,500,000/8 70 « TR HRIBAIRF T
DEBIER B it RIS R A B R
BEYEBE-_T—=F+-A=1+—HILF
EZWAREE LM AR ERES
TSR ALHREE  AFEHREEVEE
B 11,900,000 78 7T °
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(5)

(6)

Electronic power meters and solutions

Turnover ERE
Impairment of intangible assets BIVEERE
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating loss reEE

During 2013, there was an increase in sales of mag-stripe card
security decoder chips and segmental turnover was increased
by 11.3% to HK$310.9 million as compared to 2012. With the
increase in revenue and improvement in gross profit margin,
segmental operating loss was narrowed down to HK$11.7
million in 2013. Included in the operating loss of 2012, there
was a one-time non-cash impairment charge of HK$24.6
million against the goodwill of our electronic power meters and
solutions business.

Unallocated corporate expenses

The amount mainly represents corporate office expenses and
net exchange loss. The increase as compared to 2012 was
mainly caused by an increase in net foreign exchange loss
given the depreciation of Japanese yen.

OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)

Revenue

The consolidated turnover amounted to HK$1,294.3 million,
representing an increase of 49.1% over 2012. Such increase
was mainly contributed by the increase in segmental turnover
of our payment processing solutions segment. Please also refer
to Note (1) to (5) above.

2013 2012 Change
—E—=F —E-CF &E)
HK$/000 HK$’000 +(-)
FERT FHIT
310,924 279,365 +11.3%
- (24,600) N/A/NE R
(3,955) (57,286) N/A/TiEmM
(11,654) (69,513) N/A/iE

RZE—=F  WERNEEECHHE
BN HEEEER T - ZFEN
11.3% Z 310,900,000 % 7T ° & 2 AL
AEMREEFENE  DELEFBBER
T—ZFUYEZE 11,700,000 7T ° L EEE
AEEMMBATREB ZHEEL X
1% 3638 £ R E F X 524,600,000 7T 0 E
FAZE - ZFEMREERE -

(6) ROBMAEHEMAX

SREIBEARNNRAEMI RINEEERF
BB T —_FAMENDEIEHRN
H Bl 82 (S B SNE B 1R F FIL I 2R -

BREMNBRERMRR

A WA
URAEEFEA1,294,300,0008 7T BT
— ZFHEIN49.1%c BREEEMEZHANEK
PNX AR ZEERBRFRISENSEE
EERINAE - BRN2EEXHFENE
(5)°
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(B)

©

(D)

(E)

(F)

Cost of sales and operating expenses
Increase in cost of sales and operating expenses was primarily
due to:

— increase in costs of inventories sold given the sales of
ancillary products by the payment processing solutions
segment;

— increase in selling and marketing expenses such as
travelling and sales commission;

— increase in employee benefit expenses given the increase
in headcounts in higher salary banding (in particular
those professions in the payment processing solutions
segment) and general salary inflation during the year; and

— increase in net foreign exchange loss caused by the
depreciation of Japanese yen as compared to 2012.

Impairment of intangible assets

Due to the change in market condition, goodwill of HK$11.9
million arising from the acquisition of Merchant Support Co.,
Ltd and MS Car Credit Co., Ltd (“collectively, the MS Group”)
in Japan under the payment processing solutions segment was
considered to be fully impaired by management during the six
months ended 30 June 2013 after taking into account the recent
operating environment and diminishing growth rate.

Share of profit of an associated company and loss on dilution
of interest in an associated company

The Group’s share of profit of PAX Global Technology Limited
(“PAX Global”), which is listed on the Stock Exchange, for the
year ended 31 December 2013 increased in line with the
increase in profit of PAX Global in 2013. Loss on dilution of
interest in an associated company was due to the effect of
exercise of share options of PAX Global by its certain directors
and employees.

Investment properties, property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land

Increase in balance as compared to last year was mainly due to
fixed asset acquisition by the payment processing solutions
business.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include goodwill of HK$63.4 million allocated
to the electronic power meters and solutions segment. Please
also refer to Note (C) above for details on impairment of
intangible assets during the year.

W85 5y B

(B)

©

(D)

(B)

(P

HENARKEMX
HERARGERSIEMDEZAR

— XNXRZREMRITRDBOEHEE
mHEEREERA LT

— HERMBHEBRNEKRERIEE
e B
— FRESHFHEETAH AR

NRBEREEARTEDBEEAR)
TiEHe DREHE TRNFHE
DIl

— HEZ=Z=
SRR AN o

——FREZBIMNEERE

B EERE
BRTREE  BREEZRITHLER
GRBRETRE  BRAXNRFEIE

fif R 77 22 5 fA W EE B 7K Merchant Support
Co., Ltd & MS Car Credit Co., Ltd (478 [ MS
E®])FrE£ 211,900,000 7 70 2 R E
BT ZEXAZTALEANERAEH
BAE °

i —EEE A RERN R R —EBE QT
Z RS EEER
AREBEEIERB R LT 2 B &R
ERAR(BAERHNDBE_T—=F
T-A=+t—BLEFEZENEM &5
BREN_Z-=ZF 28 MEN—2 -1
—BEBE AR R EEEANAE
BRRETEEMNEETERBREZZEM
B o

REWMHE -V BERRKBURBEEL
1y
EHRREFENTIEANINRZRIER
RN EREBBEABEEEM

BEE
ﬂﬁﬁféﬁa%”@ﬂ?@éﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ&%@&

=0 R 263,400,000 7T - BEF
W#ﬁ%éﬁ?‘mﬁz#lﬁ’ 5RIFF2E EX
HI5E(C)
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(H)

U]

Interest in an associated company

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the Group’s 42.51%
effective interest in PAX Global was HK$1,385.3 million. As at
31 December 2013, the fair value of the investment is less than
its carrying value. An impairment test is performed to determine

the recoverable amount of the investment. The recoverable

amount calculated based on value-in-use exceeded the carrying

value as at 31 December 2013.

Inventories

The amount mainly represents inventories of electronic power

meters and solutions segment.

Trade and bills receivables, receivables from payment

processing solutions business and other receivables,

W85 5y B

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

(G) R—HEHEATzER
R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—H0 Kx&EER
ABERIEANNLSI%DEREZIAFES
1,385,300,00078 7T © IR —
=+—H BEQATERARHEEEE B
ETRBEAANEERENTKESE -
ARESEER - E—=F+_A=1+—

PRhREENEREERRS

H) FE

ERITERRERABE

BT -

—=%+=A

KRR TT B

0 BUERRREVREREE IAXZEEHR
T RER 2 BWFOR K B A B YRE

prepayments and deposits BANRERERE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E2——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Trade receivables (Note (i) FEWBRTR (et (1) 350,153 347,855
Bills receivables e 12,508 5,415
Less: provision for impairment of receivables B EUGRIRRERE (17,194) (23,522)
345,467 329,748
Receivables from payment processing solutions INRGREBFRRTRELZ
business (Note (ii)) FENWCRIA (M1 (ii)) 165,797 175,033
Prepayments, deposits and others JANFIE - R REAM 49,493 42,791
Total &5 560,757 547,572
Note (i): IO

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range from 0 to 180 days. The ageing

AEEHTEGEBAZGEERHOE180HTE - &

analysis of the trade receivables was as follows: YRR Z BREC DAL
2013 2012
—E-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT
Current to 90 days BNEiZ 90 H 272,673 271,850
91 to 180 days 91£180H 21,565 10,499
181 to 365 days 181%365H 23,830 10,906
Over 365 days 365 H LA E 32,085 54,600
350,153 347,855

— Decline in trade receivables aged over 365 days was due to settlement of

outstanding balances by the customers of the electronic power meters and

solutions segment during the year.

— fRERIERR 365 A Z EUGRFUR D YRR F RN ERE
FEEMRBRTRSEEPBEREREHRIT

o
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0

Note (ii):

This balance mainly represents receivables arising from the payment processing
solutions business.

For processing payments on behalf of merchants, the amounts are usually become
collectible by the Group from the banks or financial institutions once the
underlying transactions of the merchants had been acknowledged by the relevant
banks and financial institutions. As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, balances are
mainly aged below 90 days.

W85 5y B

iz (i) <

BRHABREIBERINRIEERRT REBEL 2 RIK

A -

HREBPUMZIRZEENK  AHSE - RNEP
Z R S EEMRIT R S BRI A AL ER
BERRTHAESRBBUR R —FR-_FT—=F
TZA=+—8 - BHRZEREAHBMERA -

Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing ) EIRIREMREE XTXZEEBR
solutions business and other payables FRER ZEARERAENRE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Trade payables (Note (i) e BRFR (M7 (i) 130,547 131,097
Bills payables NESE 27,289 39,479
Payables for payment processing MNRGRBRRTREBZ
solutions business (Note (ii)) FEA 3RIE (o (ii)) 243,415 136,414
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii)) H e SR IE R JEET R IE
(K&t Giii) 349,578 191,475
Total A& 750,829 498,465

Note (i):

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. The ageing
analysis of the trade payables was as follows:

e i) -

EHEBXT2EEMNF0E180B 2 © EHRR
ZERE AT

2013 2012

—g—-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET F#T

Current to 90 days HEEZE90H 83,392 87,658
91 to 180 days 912180 H 29,653 24,756
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H 7,934 7,278
Over 365 days 365 HLA E 9,568 11,405
130,547 131,097

Note (ii):

This balance represents payables to customers (which are generally merchants as
detailed in Note (1)) for the payment processing solutions business. The amounts
are generally due for settlement with these customers within 30 days.

e (i) <

BRBHIERIN RS RIERRTREBENES (—
MRBMENPTRZEP) Z3H - BRASE—RN30R
NEZEEPEITHEE -
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W85 5y B

Note (iii): B aF (i) -
2013 2012
—E—-=F T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFEL
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations* FEFT B TR BOR RS R+ 130,090 97,709
Deposits and receipt in advance from customers** 2 & K8 S WER R B 3008 *+ 140,921 31,199
Others Hith 78,567 62,567
349,578 191,475
* The increase in accrued staff costs and pension obligations was due to the * e B TR RIRREHBUEMTI MR S HE A
increase in headcounts in higher salary banding and general salary TABEARE RS LR -
inflation.
ok The increase in deposits and receipt in advance from customers was o Be RAFWMEFFAEMEEHNZNZ S

mainly due to deposits and guarantees received from customers under the
payment processing solutions business.

(K) Amounts due from/to an associated company
The amount due to an associated company represents payable
to PAX Global. Increase in amount as compared to last year
given the increase in total purchase of EFT-POS terminals under
the payment processing solutions business segment during the
year.

Amounts due from/to an associated company are unsecured,
interest-free and under normal commercial terms.

KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

On 25 January 2013, the Company received an exercise notice from
the preference shareholders (the “SBL Preference Shareholders”) of
Success Bridge Limited (“Success Bridge”), a subsidiary of the
Company, to exercise in full their rights under the shareholders
agreement dated 29 January 2010 entered into among the Company,
Success Bridge, and the SBL Preference Shareholders to exchange all
preference shares of Success Bridge registered in their names for
103,404,000 new ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) at
the exchange price of HK$4.5 per Share. As at the date of the
exercise notice, the SBL Preference Shareholders held 900 preference
shares of Success Bridge. Upon completion of this transaction,
Success Bridge became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The transaction was completed on 31 January 2013. A debit of
HK$68,395,000 was recognised in other reserve within equity as a
result of this transaction.

BIBFRR N REBREF AN EZEE RRES
FEL -

K)  FEW BN — R E D RRE
FEff — B2 ARRBRERNBEERRZ
I ANFARIN R ZBIERIARTT R
EBOBBABTINIHEMK R 2B
B BRESEREFAMMEM -

FEUL,FEfT — R B & N R FRIE R ARIE R
B MR — R EIERETE -

FERERBMETEE

RZZE—=F—A=+HA AARHEEARAF
Mt B ‘X ®)Success Bridge Limited ([Success
Bridgel) @ 5t AR AR 3R ([SBLEB S ARAR R 1) B i 2
TEBEA 2EITEKESNAR A - Success
Bridge B2 SBLIE L IRIRRFTAI Z AR — T —F
F-AZTNBEZRRBZIAT 2R - RS
BREFIR4.58TTEREZ T 280 Success Bridge &
FERA103,404,000 7 2 BIHT E @A (TR 1) -
AT 0 38 A B HR - SBLAE 5t AR AR 3R #F A 900 ik
Success Bridge & 5€ I% © 58 B 22 5 1& * Success
Bridge K B ARFIZEWMB AR - ZIERXFHER
ZE—=F-A=t—HEK - HEXRSEER
s B A A i M RERR B 4t 68,395,000 78 7T ©
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group reported total assets of
HK$3,576.4 million (2012: HK$3,192.3 million), which were
financed by total liabilities of HK$830.5 million (2012: HK$510.9
million) and equity of HK$2,746.0 million (2012: HK$2,681.4
million). The net asset value was HK$2,746.0 million (2012:
HK$2,681.4 million). Net assets per share amounted to HK$0.99 as
at 31 December 2013 as compared to HK$1.00 per share as at 31
December 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$1,061.1 million (2012: HK$794.2 million) and no short term
borrowings (2012: Nil). The net cash position as at 31 December
2013 was HK$1,061.1 million as compared to HK$794.2 million as
at 31 December 2012. The gearing ratio (defined as total borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equity) was zero (2012: Same). The gearing
ratio is considered healthy and suitable for the continued growth of
the Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no bank borrowings (2012:
Nil) and had banking facilities of approximately HK$23.0 million
(2012: HK$22.4 million). As at 31 December 2013, the banking
facilities were secured by the leasehold land and buildings of a
subsidiary of the Company, with a net carrying amount of HK$3.7
million (2012: HK$3.6 million) and HK$14.1 million (2012: HK$14.9
million), respectively.

Approximately HK$664.5 million, HK$118.9 million, HK$166.8
million, HK$105.4 million, HK$0.2 million and HK$5.3 million of
the Group’s cash balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong
Kong dollar, US dollar, Japanese Yen and Euro and Macanese pataca
(“MOP”) respectively as at 31 December 2013.

Approximately HK$262.5 million, HK$238.1 million, HK$165.4
million, HK$123.4 million, HK$0.2 million and HK$4.6 million of
the Group’s cash balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong
Kong dollar, US dollar, Japanese Yen and Euro and MOP respectively
as at 31 December 2012.

W85 5y B
RBESRHMBER

RZE—=F+-A=+—8 ~E£EHKBEE
42 {8 %3,576,400,000/8 T( = & — = F:
3,192,300,000% T ) HE B E BB A
830,500,000/ 7L ( = Z — =4 : 510,900,000 7

TT) KRR 4858 B 2,746,000,0008 T (ZFE——
F 1 2,681,400,000%% ;T ) & E FE A A

2,746,000,000 7870 (= — =4 : 2,681,400,000
BIL) c RZE—=F+_A=1+—H BRE
EFEAR09ETL HER-ZE—ZF+=H
=+—BHRASR1.008TT -

R-Z—=ZF+-_A=+—H AEEABELR

E%%E%,om,mo,ooo;‘%ﬁ(* —:i'
794,200,000 70) M W EEGHER(ZZ——F :

#w) N E—=F+_A :Jr*EIZiE@@%E
#1,061,100,000 87 ' HE R T —=—_F+=
B=+—HEIA794,200,000/87C - EXRBEL
K (FEABREBERERER) AT (ZE—=
F AR  c EABBHRWEARER  WEA
REBEBHEER -

BEXRRBRERFR

MN_ZE—=F+_A=1+—8 AEELEET
BR((ZE—ZF: B)RBRITEEY
23,000,000 7T( = & — = 4 : 22,400,00078
TT) e EAfgf_EwL A=+—8" R17EE
BARR—MENBAR zHE L KEF (RE
FE 5 Bl A3,700,0008 T — T — = F:
3,600,000 7T) % 14,100,000 8 T( —Z— — 4 :
14,900,000 78 7T) ) YEHE I o

R-FE—Z=F+=-A=+—8 AEBEZH&4
#5 Bl4 664,500,000 78 7T * 118,900,000 7T *
166,800,000 7T * 105,400,000/ 7T * 200,000
78 7T 5 5,300,000 7T i D BIAAREE « BT
%t - AE - BT ROBPIEE (DRPIE D) FIE -

RZZE—ZF+ZA=1+—H ' *5EZR&4E
#9 51#)262,500,000/8 7T ~ 238,100,000/8 7T *
165,400,000 JT * 123,400,000 7T * 200,000
7 7T & 4,600,000 T i D BRI A AR ~ T
%t - AE - BT koBRPIEETIE -
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no significant
investment held as at 31 December 2013.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during
the year ended 31 December 2013.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2013.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases, incurs expenses
and has its assets and liabilities denominated mainly in US dollars,
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and Japanese Yen. Currently, the
Group has not entered into any agreements or purchased instruments
to hedge the Group’s exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in
the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or Japanese Yen
may have an impact on the operating results of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2013.
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Financial Review

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2013 was 2,493. The breakdown of employees by division is as
follows:

W85 5y B
&

NEANR _BE—=F+_-_A=1+—HB2EBHEH
52,493 A - BEZRIHPESWOT ¢

Telecommunication solutions BRART 424
Financial solutions TRUEBRT R 503
Payment platform solutions AT RBRRTT B 408
Payment processing solutions XNRGRIBFRTT R 398
Electronic power meters and solutions BRI EEMRBRTR 641
Others Hith 86
Corporate office 4 g 33

2,493

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive
and competitive. Employees are remunerated with a fixed monthly
income plus annual performance related bonuses. The Group
operates a share option scheme and an employees’ incentive scheme,
the details of which are set out in the Report of the Directors. The
Group also sponsors selected employees to attend external training
courses that suit the needs of the Group’s businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) measures, such
as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group’s performance. These non-GAAP
measures are not expressly permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong
and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an
alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating performance
of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a
measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely to
enhance the overall understanding of the Group current financial
performance. Additionally because the Group has historically reported certain
non-GAAP results to investors, the Group considers the inclusion of

non-GAAP measures provides consistency in our financial reporting.
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TELECOMMUNICATION SOLUTIONS

With the continuous steady growth of the IVR business, the Jiangsu
Base of China Mobile is devoted to developing internet integrated
and audio portal related innovative products and business, while
establishing a consolidated audio service platform with quality
content and capacity output. It is expected that we will have even
more development opportunities in the future. Alongside the official
launch of 4G services by China Mobile in December 2013, together
with the merge of colour image business and the colour printing
business of China Mobile, the room for future development of mobile
animation and comic will be further enhanced. Meanwhile, the cloud
communication platform provides applications on internet and
mobile internet with various integrated communication ability to both
enterprises and developers. In 2013, the cloud communication
platform has already built up a cooperation network with various
enterprises in the fields of remote medical treatment, remote
education, mobile game and e-commerce. The cloud communication
business is expected to be a new driver of our business growth.

FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS

In 2014, financial solutions segment will continue to strengthen and
expand its leading position in the core banking and financial payment
solutions area. As for core banking, we are currently participating in
various projects, such as those with China Construction Bank, Bank
of Communications, China CITIC Bank and also a number of projects
in Hong Kong and Macau. At the same time, the ATM outsourcing
operation business continues to derive a relatively stable income. In
order to capture the opportunity for internet innovations in the
financial industry, we established a laboratory jointly with the School
of Management, University of Chinese Academy of Sciences to
enhance the R&D process with practical market inputs, with an aim
to forge a solid foundation for our internet financial business.
Meanwhile, we also attempt to provide independent, prompt and
innovative solutions to our business partners through an integrated
financial IT services platform.
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PAYMENT PLATFORM SOLUTIONS

During the year, we continued to support the mobile payment
business and mobile wallet business of the e-commerce base of
China Mobile. Following the launch of 4G services by China Mobile
in December 2013, it is expected that more efforts will be put into
the promotion of “F1 & ". The product of China Mobile “F1 87,
which is based on the NFC technology, covers various industries
such as UnionPay, banking, public transportation and travelling.
Cooperation has been established with a number of national and
local banks, with nationwide network connected with various online
and offline merchants, covering the payment of a great variety of
public utilities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). As one
of the major service providers of the e-commerce base of China
Mobile, we expect that a subsisting stable income stream will be
generated from such rapid development of our base business. In the
meantime, we will be more dedicated to the expansion of the
e-commerce and payment business of China Mobile at the provincial
level. On the other hand, we will keep abreast of the opportunity for
innovations in the mobile internet and internet financial industry, and
strive to achieve a breakthrough for our own innovative business
leveraging our competitive edge and resources.

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS

The huge market potential, brilliant prospect, broad customer base
and a great variety of services together create enormous opportunities
in the third-party payment market in Mainland China. In the future,
the third-party payment industry is expected to become a more
segmented and subdivided market. We will capitalize on the existing
competitive edge to seize the priority in developing related value-
added services. We will focus on providing different customized
services to enhance customer satisfaction and loyalty through
utilization of customer resources and establishment of close business
relationship with them. We will also identify quality merchants
through our marketing efforts and expand the operation scale of the
payment processing business to strengthen our market position. Apart
from this, we will continue to optimize our compliance and risk
control measures and consolidate our cooperation with commercial
banks, so as to join hands in expanding into a broader market.

Business Outlook
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ELECTRONIC POWER METERS AND SOLUTIONS

In 2014, State Grid Corporation of China will continue to carry
forward the smart grid construction and the standardization of the
new technical requirements of smart meters as well as data collection
devices. The application of multi-rate meters for the power grid
reconstruction work in the rural areas will be further implemented,
which is expected to reach a sizable scale. Meanwhile, China
Southern Power Grid will put forward the tendering for smart meters
as well as the smart grid construction. The market capacity for smart
meters and data collection devices is expected to be relatively stable
in 2014. We will continue to improve our market information
collection channels and make prompt and accurate response. In the
meantime, we will maintain and enhance the production capacity of
the relevant products by reasonably allocating resources to different
production lines, with a view to increase our market share through
tendering in the future. In addition, we are constantly strengthening
ourselves in terms of market competitiveness in the areas of R&D,
marketing and production, so as to maintain a sustainable growth
and healthy financial performance.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has in formulating its corporate governance practices
applied the Principles and complied with all of the Code Provisions
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. The Board also reviews the employee
handbook, training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and the senior management, to ensure that the operations
are conducted in accordance with the standards of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines with exact
terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company
which include the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers
and relevant information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making a request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to entering into any significant
transactions by the senior management officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company and to the exercise of independent judgement.

The Board currently comprises 9 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors, 1 Non-Executive Director and 3 Independent Non-
Executive Directors.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Chang Jun

Non-Executive Director:
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Xu Sitao

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of CG Code stipulates that Non-Executive
Director should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-
election. The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-
Executive Directors are appointed for a fixed contract term subject to
re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures which shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and subject
to re-election.

Code provision A.4.3 of CG Code stipulates that serving more than 9
years could be relevant to the determination of the independence of
an Independent Non-Executive Director. If an Independent Non-
Executive Director has served for more than 9 years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the shareholders.

Corporate Governance Report
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Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company. Besides, the Company will arrange and fund suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of its Directors.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged in-house trainings for the Directors in the
form of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of
training received by the Directors during the relevant period
according to the records provided by the Directors is as follows:

Name of Directors BEE=E
Executive Directors: BITEE:
Cheung Yuk Fung REE

Kui Man Chun RBEH

Xu Wensheng (Ee:s

Li Wenjin FXE

Xu Chang Jun wEE
Non-Executive Director: HHITEE
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RIEE
Independent Non-Executive Directors: ~ BV HEHITEE :
Tam Chun Fai B IE
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER

Xu Sitao FrEE

B3
BENRAEESNRVEZERESHBNA - #
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SR

ARRSBEREE2RFEFTERR - UL
NERBEZABNINEE - ARA D IEBEITH
MEMlRESRAEIER  SEZERYREE
Al - RIFEFRF ZRE  ESRNHEMEER
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Training on

corporate governance

regulatory development

and other relevant topics
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. The Company seeks
to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors in the Board members’ selection process, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the reporting period, the Company has a solid slate of
Directors with diverse perspectives and varied educational
background and expertise made-up, from extensive knowledge of the
information technology industry and electronic payment industry,
experience in international trade, finance and corporate
management, to professional qualifications in the legal and
accounting fields. Each Director had accumulated experience in his
respective field of expertise for at least 20 years, all of whom are
anchored by the common trait of having a natural aptitude and
singular drive for the industry so as to bring sustainable growth to the
Company.

Corporate Governance Report
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings were held four times during the year for
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance,
for approving the final results for the year ended 31 December 2012,
interim results for the period ended 30 June 2013 and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the four regular
quarterly meetings of the Board (not including other ad hoc meetings
of the Board held from time to time), Audit Committee meetings,
Nomination Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting
and general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2013 is set
out below:

EZE2ERESHERR
FRAGRTHREREETS SR UEMRIE
PBBREEXRR HWEREZE-_T——F+_-A
=t HALEFER2FES BE_T-=FXH
=T HIEHEP RGN RE BRI ER AR
BESRHR MR -

BEENEBE_T=F1T_A=1t—"BLHFE
HEMAERFEEEEER(TEEREMTRE
RUOZTEHEEESH) EXZEEEH
REZEGeH FHZESEBMBRA®Z
ERIFCEFIINT

Attendance/Number of meetings

ERHE EITRY
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Regular
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Board General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings Meeting
ENZEE® REEEE FHZEEE wR

Name of Directors EEpg =E f 88 Ezggd REAE

Cheung Yuk Fung KR N/A N/A N/A 4/4 1/1
TER TEM TER

Kui Man Chun REH N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11
TER TER TER

Xu Wensheng 1w N/A N/A N/A 4/4 171
N NEH NEM

Li Wenjin ENE N/A ”n ”n 4/4 171

TEM

Xu Chang Jun HEE N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11
TER TER TER

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RIEZ N/A N/A N/A 4/4 71
NiEH N NEH

Tam Chun Fai EiRE 2/2 1/1 1/1 4/4 11

Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 2/2 11 11 4/4 11

Xu Sitao FRE 2/2 N/A N/A 4/4 11

TE

TER
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and individual
Directors also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary attends all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep the minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to the Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for the Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain
provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have a material interest.

Corporate Governance Report
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung acted as the
Chairman, and Mr. Kui Man Chun acted as the Chief Executive
Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the Company Secretary and
the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information,
which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The role of the Chief Executive focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in
charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations.
The Chief Executive is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the organisational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. By taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all Independent Non-Executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board at all times met
the requirements of Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
Executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-Executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. In compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, Independent Non-Executive
Directors represented at least one-third of the Board throughout the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-Executive Director of his independence pursuant to
the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, which confirmed
to the Company that he has met the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company considers the
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-Executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee as at the date of this report is
set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)
Leung Wai Man, Roger
Xu Sitao

Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)
Tam Chun Fai

Li Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)
Leung Wai Man, Roger

Li Wenjin

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise). None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant
or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the external auditor, its fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor; and

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2013 to review the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control system and
risk management review and processes and the reappointment of the
external auditor.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of external auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2013
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr.
Cheung Yuk Fung, Mr. Xu Chang Jun and Mr. Xu Wensheng,
Executive Directors of the Company, will retire at the forthcoming
2014 annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the 2014 annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company’s circular dated 14 March 2014 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
whose remuneration will be determined with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management
and other related matters. The Human Resources Department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources
data and making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman and/or the Board about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the members
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2013 is set out below:

BETAEXEBISE REE -2 —=
T A=t BLFEERTFMERS S 2 e RE
BABFHHEZOT ¢

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band £ FE] AE
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 & JT £ 2,000,000 7T 3

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and (iii) to
review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2013.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 50 to 53.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

For the internal control system of the Company, the Board has
developed the Group’s internal control systems and risk assessment
and management. The Board has overall responsibility for reviewing
and maintaining an adequate and effective internal control system to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the assets of the
Group. During the year, the Board has conducted reviews of the
internal control system and considered that the internal control
system of the Group has been implemented effectively.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately HK$2,870,000. There was no non-audit
service provided by the external auditor of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(@ Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting
Shareholder(s) holding as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company, Bermuda Companies Act
1981, require the Directors to call a special general meeting
for the transaction of business specified in the requisition.

(b) Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the attention
of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meeting.

Corporate Governance Report
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Communication with shareholders and investors

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between Shareholders and the Board.
Shareholders are welcome to put forward enquiries to the
Board or the management thereat and the Chairman of the
Board, or in his absence, an Executive Director of the
Company, as well as the chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
and where applicable, the Independent Board Committee, will
be commonly be present and available to answer questions and
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary(ies) to
direct their written enquires.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Company also maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk,
where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be
found.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2014
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings. The
principal activities of the Group are provision of telecommunication
solutions, provision of financial solutions, provision of payment
solutions and sales of electronic power meters and solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 54 to 55.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2012:
Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and in note 28 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations of HK$1,262,000 were made by the
Group during the year (2012: HK$154,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented
employees in order to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme (the “Participants”)
include the Group’s full-time employees, and executive and non-
executive Directors. The Scheme became effective on 29 April 2011
and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date. Further details of the
Scheme can be found in the circular of the Company dated 28 March
2011.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme, and any other share option
schemes of the Company in issue, shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the relevant class of securities of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from its Shareholders.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all exercised and/or outstanding options
granted to each Participant shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the
relevant class of securities of the Company in issue in any 12-month
period. Any further grant of options in excess of the aforesaid 1%
limit shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the
Company with such Participant and his/her associates abstaining
from voting.

As at the date of this report, 267,342,983 Shares were available for
issue under the Scheme.

The exercise period of the options granted is determinable by the
Directors, and such period shall commence on the date of the offer of
the options (the “Offer Date”) and expire on the last day of such
period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised and no performance target need to be achieved
by the grantee before the options can be exercised.

A share option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have
taken effect when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the Participant together with a remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company.
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The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
Offer Date, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading Day”); and (ii)
a price being the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five Trading
Days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

No share option of the Company was granted or exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2013. As at 31 December 2013, and up to
the date of this report, there was no issued and outstanding share
option under the Scheme which has not been exercised or lapsed.

EMPLOYEES’ INCENTIVE PROGRAMME

On 1 September 2011, Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited (“Mega
Hunt Microelectronics”), an indirectly owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into six option deeds with certain directors and employees of
Mega Hunt Microelectronics and its subsidiary. 3,500,000 ordinary
shares of Mega Hunt Microelectronics may be issued upon the
exercise of all options granted under the option deeds at an exercise
price of HK$1.00 per share. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the option deeds will remain valid and effective for the period of 36
months from 1 September 2011.

The option deeds are designed to provide incentive to the employees
towards the contribution to Mega Hunt Microelectronics. Mega Hunt
Microelectronics wishes to grant the options to the employees so as
to entitle them to subscribe for the option shares in Mega Hunt
Microelectronics.

Under the option deeds, 50% of the options shall vest upon the
expiry of a period of 12 months from the date of the option deeds;
and the balance of 50% of the options shall vest upon the expiry of a
period of 24 months from the date of the option deeds. Prior to
exercise of the option, the option holders are not entitled to
dividends. There are also no accelerated vesting rights in case of
winding of Mega Hunt Microelectronics.

Up to the date of this report, no share option has been exercised
under the option deeds.

Report of the Directors

W

BRRITEERHEFENIEESE YER TS
ZERENETAHER(ARBIXMANESR
EFHBF(XSHD)BRMERARERMT
BmE: RHBEERTAHEALREARS
HEXMERRERMAINROEHEZ FHE:
Ko (i) ety mEi{E -

ARARTERNBZE-—ZT—=F+=-A=+—801
FERHSTEERE RZ2FT—=F+=A
=t+—HBREEAREDR  TEREZ S
T B ARITE 2 BRI ARITRE SRR -

EERBE

RZZTE——FNA—8  AEBZEENBQF
KAMREFARAR ([IAMET ) EBIKAME
FREMNBARZETESREEFT L AHER
Y © 3,500,000 & JKFAL K E 7 X @ AR ] AR
BREREREEL ZAMTAEERBIZITEESR
1008 L EITHER T - REBEHEIIBTE
Oh - BREZEEE _E——FNA—BiE—H
BRRES - BE36EA -

BREZEDAREEMRELURABEFZE
B HEBMR - KAMEFHRAIESRLBK
AR TR ERIBICA N E T IBAERD Z R

IRIRIE ARSI - 50% B B AR % A
Bt 12E A E MBS E - 82T 50% xR
BRI B BT 24 B A B M AR E - BBIR
RERETTIERT - BRI A ABBEEIRRS © Wk
AMETFBR  MEINRBEER -

BEAREAH  UVEBREREBREREE
1T »



42 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Report of the Directors

oW

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) (2012: NIL). However, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$1,290,857,000 (2012:
HK$1,157,724,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and there was no restriction relating to such rights under
the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 160.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2013.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung
KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Chang Jun

Non-Executive Director:
CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

XU Sitao
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In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2),
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung, Mr. Xu Chang Jun and Mr. Xu Wensheng,
Executive Directors of the Company, will retire at the forthcoming
2014 annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within 1
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
are set out on pages 4 to 7.

Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

EERTRARRKRSG  HEROR
EEzEERAR

R-T—=F+-A=+—0 |SEERITHE
HRARRAREEHEE(TEREFLFRBPEK
Bl(EH REEEG D) 2% - HEERG RE
HFHhBADRARRRIRIEES RPEKHIE
352 IFE 2 BB MeARA R 2 S kA
BT

RATEREE0.0025 BT 2 EER

Number of shares held

FrERGEA

Personal Corporate
interest interest Total
Name of Director BEHR EPN NGIE £ e
Kui Man Chun S8R 28,650,000 617,083,636 645,733,636

(note (i) (K17 (i)
Xu Wensheng RICE 4,566,000 - 4,566,000
Li Wenjin ENE 6,400,000 - 6,400,000
Xu Chang Jun %BE=E 16,563,000 - 16,563,000
Xu Sitao HFEE 700,000 - 700,000

Note: Bzt -

(i) These shares were held by Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun Limited, a company
which Kui Man Chun held a 99.16% interest, and Rich Global Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors, the Chief Executive of the Company nor their associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Companies.

(i) ZERMAREETSBH Sun Limited( REEH A
99.16% #2522 @) & Hi Sun Limited 2 2 & [{ B 2 &
Rich Global Limited 4 °

BREXFIEBEEN R —=F+=-A=+—
B B2E8F ARATBEHIBEZHEAL
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EREF MG IRGIEXVER) 2B - RN
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E3FEFEZECMEIRIE LT RAREFET
FHFRXZHNBRETRE MG AR E) R #
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336
of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2013, the Company had
been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and
short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the Directors and Chief Executive.

Name of Shareholder

BRREW HE

Rich Global Limited (“RGL")***

Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”)*** (Note 1)

(HiaE1)

Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 1)
REHEE(KET)

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”)

Mr. Che Fung (Note 2)
BIgSEE (Mt 2)

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited

Ms. Liu Yang (Note 3)
BIR At (ffE3)

Notes:

1

HSL had interest in the Company’s share capital by virtue of its control of 100%
shareholding in RGL, such capital were deemed interests of HSL and in turn of
Kui Man Chun through his control of 99.16% interest in HSL, in addition to his
personal interest as disclosed in the section above.

Mr. Che Fung was interested in the Company’s share capital by virtue of his
control of 100% shareholding in Ever Union.

The 195,022,000 shares were held by Atlantis Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Atlantis Investment”) in the capacity of investment manager.
Atlantis Investment was wholly owned by Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited
(“Atlantis Capital”) which was in turn wholly owned by Liu Yang. Liu Yang and
Atlantis Capital were, therefore, deemed to be interested in such Shares which
Atlantis Investment was interested under Part XV of the SFO.

The Letter “L” denotes a long position in shares.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2013, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary shares.

Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin were directors of RGL and Mr. Kui Man
Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng were directors of HSL which were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Report of the Directors
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares shareholding**
EBERHEE REZBHOBEDI
617,083,636(L)* 22.22%
617,083,636(L)* 22.22%
645,733,636(L)* 23.25%
320,572,000(L)* 11.54%
320,572,000(L)* 11.54%
195,022,000(L)* 7.02%
195,022,000(L)* 7.02%

Bt

1 HSL B2 %l RGL 2 100% % 1 i 78 78 2 &) AR A 7 5 4
o RERAWRBHSLER - MRBEMR EXFTEE

Z BRSO - 1238 A FTHE I HSL 99.16% 1 &5 % 4 7%
SR R -

2 U4 5 4 2 I Ever Union 2 100% & # 1 70 4 2 A%
AR RER o

3 % %195,022,0000%8 F& {5 A Atlantis Investment

Management (Hong Kong) Limited ([ Atlantis
Investment ) A% & 4832 & 53 #%5 A ° Atlantis Investment
£8 Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited ([ Atlantis Capital |)
2E A + Atlantis Capital HRIR2EHH - Bt - RIR
EH N HERERDIZE XV AL - 25 K Atlantis Capital #1574
2% Atlantis Investment B Rz 2 ey h B A -

* (L] RRED 2R »

“ EAHDREAAAR-F-=FT-A=t+-AZE
BITRRD 488K 2,776,833,835 B L @AETH -
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Save as disclosed above and other than the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company, there were no other parties who had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2013.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions not exempted under Rule 14A.31 or Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules are disclosed below. The Group has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

Exercise of Exchange Rights of Convertible Preference Shares issued
by a subsidiary

On 25 January 2013, the Company received an exercise notice from
the preference shareholders (the “SBL Preference Shareholders”) of
Success Bridge Limited (“Success Bridge”), a subsidiary of the
Company, to exercise in full their rights under the shareholders
agreement dated 29 January 2010 entered into among the Company,
Success Bridge, and the SBL Preference Shareholders to exchange all
preference shares of Success Bridge registered in their names for
103,404,000 new ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) at
the exchange price of HK$4.5 per Share. As at the date of the
exercise notice, the SBL Preference Shareholders held 900 preference
shares of Success Bridge. Upon completion of this transaction, total
number of issued shares of the Company increased from
2,673,429,835 to 2,776,833,835. The Shares represent approximately
3.87% of the entire issued share capital of the Company before the
issue of the Shares and approximately 3.72% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the Shares. Meanwhile,
Success Bridge became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The transaction was completed on 31 January 2013. A debit of
HK$68,395,000 was recognised in other reserve within equity as a
result of this transaction.

B EXFTREES  BRESHARBITERAEIA
Sh o BEERMALR - E—=F+_-_A=+—H
BRARBEFNMPEGRIIEIBGARFAFTE
Z B LRosk 2 AN R BB SRR R (0 R 2 HE

TR RRE R %&%%F%L SEKRERIE LR
BIZE14A 31 14A 3 KER R 2 IS BT -
ZIS%EM;%LWEEIJ%MAE THERZER
DZWERT -

TENBRARRTZABRRELER 2 ERE

RZE—Z=ZF—AZ+HA  KARAFREERAF
Bt 8 72 5] Success Bridge Limited ([ Success Bridge )
B IERAR R ([ SBLE SRR AR ER 1) 8 2 1783 AN
ZHEITEBEEFNZAR R A~ Success Bridge B SBL &
ERBRERAEIVERA-Z—ZF—A =1+ 1A
ZBRIBH BT 24N AIRERESR4.58T
BB T2k BSuccess Bridge {8 5E % 4% 103,404,000
REAS A AR BB ([ tn ) » RATEEimAn HE
SBL & 5t A% & 3 4% & 900 A% Success Bridge & 5E /% ©
R THIE ARA 2B ETRG BB S
2,673,429,835 BIE INZE 2,776,833,835 A » R0 1A
ERARREITRMD A Z 2EE #ITIRAKI3.87%
NARREINIER 2 2HBE EITIARLI3.72% °
[RIAF » Success Bridge X BN ARl 2 BB AR
Eilﬁi%ﬂﬁf‘_?—zi—ﬂ =t—HEMX- It

REZEHRERED E RGN ERB M
68,395,000 T °
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Grant of Options by and Deemed Disposal of a Wholly-owned
Subsidiary

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6 January
2014 and the circular of 28 January 2014, EEZTTEBEHEERA
A] (“Chongqing Jiexing”), which was accounted for as a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chongging Jiexing (the “Subsidiary”), entered into a conditional
options agreement with certain management of the Subsidiary (the
“Grantees”) pursuant to which Chongging Jiexing and the Subsidiary
conditionally agreed to grant options to the Grantees to subscribe up
to 20% of the enlarged registered capital of the Subsidiary at the
exercise price of RMB1.2 for every RMB1.0 in the enlarged registered
capital of the Subsidiary within the specified exercise period.
Assuming that all of the Grantees exercise the options in full, the
Grantees will, in aggregate, own 20% of the enlarged registered
capital of the Subsidiary and the Group’s interests in the Subsidiary
will be diluted from 100% to 80%.

Mr. Shen Zheng, being one of the Grantees, was a director and
general manager of the Subsidiary and a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the entering into of the options agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The options were granted to the Grantees on 18 February 2014.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group which did not
constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2013.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 24%
— five largest suppliers combined 36%
Sales

— the largest customer 23%
— five largest customers combined 43%

Report of the Directors
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During the year, total cost of purchases included cost of inventories
sold of electronic funds transfer point-of-sale (“EFT-POS”) terminals
purchased from PAX Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”)
which amounted to approximately HK$121.1 million, representing
approximately 24% of total purchases and being the Group’s largest
supplier/one of the five largest suppliers of the Group for the year.
The Company held 42.51% interest in PAX Global and Mr. Li
Wenjin, an Executive Director of the Company and an Executive
Director of PAX Global, was interested in 10,000,000 share options
issued by PAX Global (the underlying shares of which represented
approximately 0.96% of the issued share capital of PAX Global) as at
31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Save as disclosed in the section titled “Connected transactions”, there

is no material event subsequent to the year ended 31 December
2013.

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme of the Group or the
Company set up in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance. Under the scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum
of HK$1,250 and they can choose to make additional contributions.
The employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,250 (the
“Mandatory Contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100% of
the employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the
age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Group is required to contribute an
amount to certain retirement benefit schemes based on approximately
7% to 20% of the yearly wages of those workers in the PRC. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those workers of the Group.

FRN - BRERABERNE S REEEBRAA
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TC o HEREBAEEN24%  BAFEAREEZ AR
B,/ AARHERZ — R-_ZT—=ZF+=A
=+—H  AARRBEBRIIFEA251 %R
MARRAITEETREERINTEEENEL
AR E BERIKETT Z 10,000,000 17 88 MR (48
BIROIEE BRIEBEITRAL0.96%) FHE
e

BAEREEN BF REIBMBEALRBES
PR AR R ABE5% 2 BR - BIER L
MEBEF K EE PR TR -

HEHREBR

fRIBERS ] —HMREEN BE-_T—=
FHoA=t—HALFERLBEMEREN -

RIRETHE

RRBLMAEES AR FIR
BEBR M ABSGIIN 2 EEHFURIRET
gl o m%ﬁ%'ﬁé BIZ A 5% EHER - |k
PR & 1,2508 7T » M E el B IZEHRRIMER
EETBAHIFIZEE AF5%HE - ERA1,250
T ([ea$IMEEF ) - EEFE 65 5RBIK - Fil
K TIERE N0 - TS 2 ED B ok I (ER o

REBLEZME

/8
2

%% RIBPEARLME ([ E]) BERR
CAEBEARTEREZFEFENINE
20% - ﬁ%$ﬁ%mﬂﬁﬂ¢ﬁﬁﬁ°=ﬁmﬁ

R SR Bz SR R B R R INE R B ATRE



SRR (PR R QA

It B33 49

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors have an interest in any business constituting a
competing business to the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained during the year the amount of public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2014
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54
to 159, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2013, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report

¥ 1A B Vli

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 March 2014
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For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—H
LFEE

2013 2012

—E-= —E——F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

ks THER FAT

Revenue WA 56 1,294,337 868,306
Cost of sales SHE AR 7 (810,410) (624,016)
Gross profit EF 483,927 244,290
Other income H AU A 5 14,170 11,426
Other gains, net H b Y 25 % 58 5 1,167 4,221
Selling expenses HERX 7 (177,700) (131,475)
Administrative expenses 1TEE A 7 367,373) (351,543)
Impairment of intangible assets mEAERE 7,18 (11,864) (24,600)
Operating loss e EE (57,673) (247,681)
Share of profit of an associated company {5 —fEE & A T 2 % 7 21 92,612 73,616

Loss on dilution of interest in R—HEBE QR 2 R EE

an associated company 21 (6,883) -
Finance costs AE KA 10 - (1,295)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATISH TSR] (&) 28,056 (175,360)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris® (), #% 11 (1,455) 863
Profit/(loss) for the year FraF, (Ei8) 26,601 (174,497)

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F65E1598 2 Wi ra SRR 2 EFRE D -
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Consolidated Income Statement (Continued)

AR W (4)

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2013 2012
—E-—= —E——%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
LiEs3 FTHET FHET
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEAEER, (E518)
— Equity holders of the Company — RABIRESEEA 30,045 (160,763)
— Non-controlling interests — I (3,444) (13,734)
26,601 (174,497)
HK$ per share HK$ per share
BRET BRAET
Earning/(loss) per share for profit/(loss) RATEREEABGRR,
attributable to the equity holders (BR)2E8RERN(HR)
of the Company:
Basic earning/(loss) EAREF(E8) 14 0.01 (0.06)
Diluted loss BEEBE 14 (0.01) (0.06)

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these 651598 2 Wi It A FSRE 2 HAHH -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B 2 i M A
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For the year ended

31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2013 2012
—E—= —=—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year FRRF(&8) 26,601 (174,497)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax Hit2EzE(FEa)
(HNBRHIEH)
Items that have been reclassified or may be EEHNSBERHBTREN
subsequently reclassified to profit and loss PEEEFNREE2EE
Exchange differences arising on translation of the RE TGN B N BB 3=
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EEZENRER 17,483 4,075
Fair value gain/(loss) on revaluation of BfAHEESREE
available-for-sale financial assets RNTHEW S (EE) 2,951 (2,751)
Share of other comprehensive income of an FEAE —E 2 R B2 BAh
associated company ZHEKE 11,826 2,717
Release of reserve upon dilution of interest in an g —HB e AR ERE
associated company B R (151) -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, ER2EKE(FE) A8
net of tax (HNBRBEIH) 58,710 (170,456)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to: EaZERE S (EE) 85
— Equity holders of the Company — RREREAEFEA 62,388 (157,432)
— Non-controlling interests — RS (3,678) (13,024)
58,710 (170,456)

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

A B R R

As at 31 December

R+=—H=+—H
2013 2012
—=E—-= —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties wEME 15 2,233 2,405
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE M 16 154,689 126,039
Leasehold land HE L 17 36,653 37,330
Intangible assets | EE 18 68,420 84,198
Interest in an associated company S D) l/N 21 1,561,681 1,458,419
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmEE 19 30,395 27,267
Long-term deposits KRS 23 2,916 2,563
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,856,987 1,738,221
Current assets RENEE
Inventories & 22 76,602 81,310
Trade and bills receivables FEUR BE T JE = R 23 345,467 329,748
Receivables from payment processing YRR GEEBBATERER L
solutions business e TR IE 23 165,797 175,033
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Ef JEUGRIE ~ TET5IE RiZd 23 46,577 40,228
Amount due from an associated company &g — RSB & A B F0E 35 3,451 42
Financial assets at fair value through RAFEFABNSEEZ
profit or loss TREE 24 - 13,948
Short-term bank deposits G HIIRTTIF X 25 20,428 19,574
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBRSEEY 26 1,061,136 794,195
Total current assets REBEELE 1,719,458 1,454,078
Total assets EEH#E 3,576,445 3,192,299
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable ARBERIGE AL
to the Company’s equity holders BAREHE
Share capital RS 27 6,942 6,684
Reserves i 28 2,752,418 2,619,411
2,759,360 2,626,095
Non-controlling interests IR R (13,384) 55,290
Total equity R 2,745,976 2,681,385

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

A o LI R (4

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

As at 31 December

R+=A=t+—H
2013 2012
—=E—= —E2——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M 7E FTERT FAT
LIABILITIES B
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIS AR 30 1,245 2,307
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEEATE 1,245 2,307
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables FERTBR IR R e R 4R 29 157,836 170,576
Payables for payment processing SRR EIBERF T
solutions business ES7 vl XN ¢E| 29 243,415 136,414
Other payables H e 5R 29 349,578 191,475
Amount due to an associated company FE < — B & A RIRIE 35 69,964 4,082
Current income tax liabilities BHIEHAas 8,431 6,060
Total current liabilities BB ERE 829,224 508,607
Total liabilities =R L] 830,469 510,914
Total equity and liabilities EEREEATE 3,576,445 3,192,299
Net current assets REEEFE 890,234 945,471
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBDAS 2,747,221 2,683,692

The financial statements on pages 54 to 159 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 6 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.

XU WENSHENG
BRXE
Director

EE

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FoAR 9B REBEES

—ARNB#ENERREE -

LI WENJIN

FNE
Director

-
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Balance Sheet

s fE R

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2013 2012
—=E—= —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FTHET FHT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REME 15 3,341 3,599
Leasehold land THE i 17 25,030 25,790
Available-for-sale financial asset AftHESREE 19 24,000 20,800
Investments in subsidiaries RBRAZRE 20 985,116 851,737
Investment in an associated company R—EEERRZKE 21 316,862 316,862
Total non-current assets I RBEELE 1,354,349 1,218,788
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and HAth FEUGRIE « FERTFRIA
deposits Rigg 23 1,269 1,463
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A B ZRIE 20 313,216 405,678
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEF AN EE 2
profit or loss ERMEE 24 - 13,948
Cash and cash equivalents HERRESEEY 26 29,915 4,147
Total current assets REEEAE 344,400 425,236
Total assets EEHAE 1,698,749 1,644,024
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable AREERFEARERE
to the Company’s equity holders R f#E
Share capital &N 27 6,942 6,684
Reserves s 28 1,114,062 1,059,133
Total equity A% 1,121,004 1,065,817

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet (Continued)

s LA R (1)

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2013 2012
—=E—= —E2——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P FET FHET
LIABILITIES aE

Current liabilities HBaE
Other payables Hfth R ZIE 29 10,046 9,373
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEN B A T ZIE 20 567,699 568,834
Total current liabilities REBEEERE 577,745 578,207
Total liabilities aEeE 577,745 578,207
Total equity and liabilities EaRkAEAR 1,698,749 1,644,024
Net current liabilities REBEEFE 233,345 152,971
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRTEBERS 1,121,004 1,065,817

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 159 were SE54E 159 v M KRB ESTEN - F
approved by the Board of Directors on 6 March 2014 and were —MMFE=AXBIEREREFE -
signed on its behalf.

XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
B E ERE
Director Director
EF Ed

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these SE65F159E 7 Wik hirA MRz HAE5 -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Aok Wil Aa 28 W

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z-=Z5+-A=+—HLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREEEARL
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other ~ Exchange  Retained ~controlling
capital  premium surplus  reserves reserve earnings  interests Total
FER
B BROEE EHEH  HEHEE EXRE  REERAN 35 EEl
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR Tz TEx TR Tz  TEx  TER  TEx
Balance at 1 January 2013 WZ8-=5-B-Hz&H 6,684 930,020 168,434 477,302 152,394 891,261 55,290 2,681,385
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year Enat - - - - - 30045 (3444) 26,601
Other comprehensive (loss)/income B2 (58R) /s
Exchange differences arising on translation BEEINBELRNBER
of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EEVERER - - - - 17,717 - 34) 17483
Fair value gain on revaluation of available-for-sale EffRIESREE
financial assets (Note 19) NTEYE (i 19) - - - 2,951 - - - 2,91
Share of other comprehensive income of FlE-ERERA A
an associated company (Note 21) 2ENE Wit 21) - - - - 11826 - - 11826
Release of reserve upon dilution of interest in an 3 1N
associated company (Note 21) B ZREMZ21) - - - - (151) - - (151)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(FR)/ hELE - - - 2,951 29392 30,045 (3,678) 58710
Share of other reserve of an associated company (Note 21) FE{E— M & 1 E] 7 Kt f
(i) - - - 5858 - - - 5858
Employees' incentive programme of a subsidary ~ENELAZEERHEE
(Note 27(b)) (Hitar) - - - 3 - - - 3
Exercise of exchange rights of convertible TE-RNE R AT TR
preference shares issued by a subsidiary (Note 34) Bz BE (Wit 34) 258 133,133 - (68,395) - - (64,99) -
Balance at 31 December 2013 WZE-=%+-B=1+-H
k33 6,942 1,063,153 168,434 417,739 181,786 921,306 (13,384) 2,745,976
The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these ZE65F1598 2 Wi hérA M SREZ HA 5 -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

Fas 1 R 4o 52 B ¢ (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-T-—F+-A=1+—HLHFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

ARAERHEAER
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other  Exchange  Retained  controlling
capital ~ premium surplus — reserves reserve  earnings  interests Total
Rk
A RHEE ERER  H4RE  ERRE  RERN s At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Tér TR TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr TEn
Balance at 1 January 2012 WZE-—5-B-BeEH 6,684 930,020 168,434 509,536 146,289 1,052,024 126,055 2,939,042
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (160,763)  (13,734)  (174,497)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income B2 (58) /Wi
Exchange differences arising on translation BEEINBARNBER
of the financial statements of foreign subsidaries EEVEREE - - - - 3,388 - 687 4075
Fair value (loss)/gain on revaluation of available-for-sale ~ EfFAIENESBEE
financial assets (Note 19) ATEBE) M (et 19) - - - - - B 0B
Share of other comprehensive income of Eih-REERA A MEE
an associated company (Note 21) W (it 21) - - - - 2717 - - 2717
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 20 (F8)/ WBHE - - - (2,774) 6,105  (160763)  (13,024)  (170,456)
Acquisition of 20% equity interest in a W — TR B 223 20% g
subsidiary - - - (38,257) - - (57,743) (96,000)
Share of other reserve of an associated company (Note 21) FE/E—FEB4 A E 2 E it
(i) - - - 80 - - - 80
Employees' incentive programme of a subsidary —HENELAEERHEE
(Note 27(b)) (Htaz) - - - 77 - - 2 79
Balance at 31 December 2012 WZE-Z8+ZA=+-H
k3] 6,684 930,020 168,434 477,302 152,394 891,261 55290 2,681,385

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

M Bk

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2013 2012
—E—= —T—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
LiEs3 FTHET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBECHERE

Cash generated from/(used in) operations & F715,/(FTA)HE & 31(a) 326,565 (166,742)
Overseas income tax paid B X BINTE T (397) (41)

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating #4275 5115,/(FTH) IR & F 4

activities 326,168 (166,783)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHZRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment fEZE Y% - BE MEE 16 (65,490) (52,075)
Purchases of intangible assets BERTEE 18 (77) -
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - BEREE

plant and equipment S IE 31(b) 203 1,248
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net cash paid WEEMTB AT » SFEEIR S H - (7,666)
Acquisition of 20% equity interest in W — RIS BB A B 20% AR -

a subsidiary, net cash paid FRAE T - (96,000)
Interest received BEYFLE 2,342 4,911
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets &R A FE& A F S E1E

at fair value through profit or loss ZEREEMBSHRIE 15,140 10,256
Purchases of financial assets BEIE QT ER AT SEE

at fair value through profit or loss ZERMEE (89) (9,543)
Net cash used in investing activities BB EREFTRE S FE 47,971) (148,869)

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these $65E1598 i isrAMEHRER 2 EP D -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

B Bl i wak (A1)

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2013 2012
—E—= —ET—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M eE THET FHET
Cash flows from financing activities METEH2EESRE
Proceeds from inception of short-term RIS ERIRITE RS A
bank loan - 6,150
Repayment of short-term bank loan EEEERITER - (29,352)
Interest paid EAFE - (1,295)
Increase in short-term bank 52 HRIRITF RIE N
deposits (294) (19,360)
Net cash used in financing activities B SEBATRIR S5 (294) (43,857)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERBREEE Y28
cash equivalents (R) FH 277,903 (359,509)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRENRLEEY
of the year 794,195 1,167,201
Exchange loss on cash and cash REPREEEYELFBE
equivalents (10,962) (13,497)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESRALEEY
of the year 26 1,061,136 794,195

The notes on pages 65 to 159 are an integral part of these  Z65=1598 2 iz i A MK RER 2 HhEo -
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holdings.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”), are principally engaged in the provision of
telecommunication solutions, provision of financial solutions,
provision of payment platform solutions, provision of payment
processing solutions and sales of electronic power meters and
solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 6 March
2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree

of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions

and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

()

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group:

The following standards have been adopted
by the group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and
have a material impact on the Group:

Amendment to HKAS 1, ‘Financial statement
presentation’ regarding other comprehensive
income. The main change resulting from these
amendments is a requirement for entities to
group items presented in ‘other comprehensive
income’ (OCI) on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments).

HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial
statements’, builds on existing principles by
identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should
be included within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company. The
standard provides additional guidance to
assist in the determination of control where
this is difficult to assess.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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F SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

tinued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Conti

(a)

inued)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group: (Continued)

HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other
entities’, includes the disclosure requirements
for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates,
special purpose vehicles and other off balance
sheet vehicles.

HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to
improve consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRS. The requirements, which are largely
aligned between HKFRS and US GAAP, do
not extend the use of fair value accounting
but provide guidance on how it should be
applied where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards within HKFRS.

There is no other new and amended standards
to existing HKFRS that are effective for the
Group’s accounting year commencing 1
January 2013 that could be expected to have
a material impact on the Group.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted:

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2013, and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None
of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, except the following set out

below:

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in November
2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts
of HKAS 39 that relate to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 requires financial assets to be
classified into two measurement categories:
those measured as at fair value and those
measured at amortised cost.
determination is made at initial recognition.
The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument. For financial
liabilities, the standard retains most of the
HKAS 39 requirements. The main change is
that, in cases where the fair value option is
taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit
risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9’s full
impact. The Group will also consider the
impact of the remaining phases of HKFRS 9

when completed by the Board.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted: (Continued)
Amendment to HKAS 36, ‘Impairment of
assets’ on recoverable amount disclosures for

non-financial assets.

This amendment

removed certain disclosures of the
recoverable amount of CGUs which had been
included in HKAS 36 by the issue of HKFRS

13.

There are no other HKFRS or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group

has control. The Group controls entities when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entities and

has the ability to affect those returns through its

power over the entities.

Subsidiaries are

consolidated from the date on which control is

transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement (Note 2.9).

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the group’s
accounting policies.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associated company, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
cost of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associated company

An associated company is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investment in an associated company
is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in an associated company includes
goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associated company is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associated company equals
or exceeds its interest in the associated company,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associated company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Associated company (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associated company is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the
associated company and its carrying amount and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of an
associated company’ for using the equity method in the
consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of the investment in the associated
company is required upon receiving dividends from this
investment if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the associated company in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the Company’s separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associated company are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associated company.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Accounting policies of associated companies
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution arising in investments in
associated companies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

24

2.5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group

entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at

the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associated company that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the Company
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group’s ownership interest in associated
companies or jointly controlled entities that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
the consolidated income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the repaired part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

5-10%
20% or over

Buildings
Leasehold improvements
lease terms,
whichever is shorter
18%—-33%
9%—-33%
18%-25%

Office furniture and equipment
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
companies in the consolidated group, is classified as
investment property. The cost of an investment property
comprises its purchase price and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the property to its intended use.
After initial recognition, investment property is stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method
to allocate cost of the investment property over its
estimated useful lives, as follows:
Buildings 5%
Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
upfront prepayments made for the rights to use the land
for periods varying from 40 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land is expensed in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

29

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associated companies and represents the excess
of the consideration transferred over the Company’s
interest in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Brand name, licences, customer list, contracts,
patents and in-progress technology

Separately acquired brand name, licences, customer
list and contracts, patents and in-progress
technology are shown at historical cost. Brand
name, licences, customer list and contracts, patent
and in-progress technology acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the date
of acquisition. They have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost over their estimated
useful lives (1.5-5 years).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

29

Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Software
Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives (five years). Costs
associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as
an expense as incurred.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are not
subject to amortisation, which are at least tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Financial assets and liabilities

2.11.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities
are classified as “other financial liabilities at

amortised cost”.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they

are classified as non-current.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade
and bills receivables’, ‘receivables from
payment processing solutions business’, ‘other
receivables and deposits’, ‘long term
deposits’, ‘amount due from an associated
company’, ‘short-term bank deposits’, and
‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

(d)  Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost are
initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The
Group’s other financial liabilities at amortised
cost comprise ‘trade and bills payables’,
‘payables for payment processing solutions
business’, ‘other payables’ and ‘amount due
to an associated company’ in the consolidated
balance sheet.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘Other gains,
net’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other gains, net” when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the fair value adjustments
accumulated in equity are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement as ‘other gains, net'.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-in-
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
related production overhead (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement within administrative expenses. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investment with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

income statement, except to the extent that it relates to

items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and an
associated company operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and an associated company, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Only when there is an agreement in place that gives
the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and an associated
company only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.
The assets of the Pension Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)  Pension obligations (Continued)

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group is required to contribute an amount to
certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the
Group. Contributions to these retirement benefits
schemes are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

(c)  Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognizes a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amount for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities, as described below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectibility of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Provision of services

Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognised
using the stage of completion method, measured by
reference to the agreed milestones of work
performed and is shown after eliminating sales
within the Group.

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress
toward completion, estimates are revised. These
revisions may result in increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by management.

The Group recognises revenue from its payment
processing solution business when services are
rendered which generally coincide when the
underlying transactions of the merchants (customers of
the Group) have been acknowledged by the relevant
banks and financial institutions, by which contractual
right of the Group and the merchants to receive cash
flows from the financial institutions is established and
amount to be received could be reliably estimated.

Licence income

Income from licensing of software program to an
associated company is recognised upon the
installation of the licensed program on the related
products by its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

Other Income

(a) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(b) Lease income — operating lease
Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are expensed in the consolidated income statement
on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in “other income” in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset. The grant is recognised as income
over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised
as intangible assets when it is probable that the project
will be a success considering its commercial and
technological feasibility, and costs can be measured
reliably. Other development expenditures are expensed
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The Directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”),
HK$, Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and US dollars
(“US$"). The majority of assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, HK$, JPY and USS$,
and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies.
The Group is subject to foreign exchange rate
risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a
currency other than HK$, JPY or RMB, which
are the functional currencies of the major
operating companies within the Group. The
Group currently does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management
believes that the exchange rate risk for
translations between HK$ and US$ do not
have material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates.

For companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2013, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,975,000 lower/higher (2012: post-tax
loss HK$1,922,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of RMB denominated current
account with group companies which have
foreign currency other than HKS$.

As at 31 December 2013, if JPY had
weakened/strengthened by 1% against the
HK$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,434,000 lower/higher
(2012: post-tax loss HK$1,870,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of JPY
denominated receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2013, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$4,780,000 higher/lower (2012: post-tax
loss HK$3,765,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of HK$ denominated cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables
and borrowings as well as the current
accounts with group companies.

At 31 December 2013, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$257,000 lower/higher (2012: post-tax loss
HK$213,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables as well as the current accounts
with group companies.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because investments held by the
Group are classified on the consolidated
balance sheet either as available-for-sale or at
fair value through profit or loss. The Group is
not exposed to commodity price risk. To
manage its price risk arising from investments
in equity securities, diversification of the
portfolio is done in accordance with the limits
set by the Executive Directors.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises mainly from short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. Other
financial assets and financial liabilities are
either non-interest-bearing or bear fixed
interest rates and are measured at amortised
cost.

At 31 December 2013, if interest rates on
interest-bearing short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been approximately
HK$10,808,000 higher/lower (2012: post-tax
loss HK$8,126,000 lower/higher) due to
interest income earned on market interest
rate.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, trade and bills
receivables, receivables from payment processing
solutions business, other receivables and deposits,
short-term bank deposits and deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, trade and bills receivables, receivables from
payment processing solutions business, other
receivables and deposits, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly placed
with state-owned financial institutions and
reputable banks. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to reputable and credit-
worthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and appropriate percentage
of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the authorisation of credit limits to
individual customers and recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
mainly represent investments in equity securities
listed on recognised exchange. Investments in
available-for-sale financial assets are reviewed and
approved by the Executive Directors. Procedures
are in place to regularly review the business plans
and the performance of these investments to ensure
the related credit risks is properly managed.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales of
goods and services to the largest customer
accounted for 23% (2012: 28%) for the total
revenue, and top five customers constituted 43% of
the Group’s turnover for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: 52%).

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and ensure the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of available financing,
including short-term bank loans. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group’s finance department maintains flexibility in
funding by maintaining adequate amount of cash
and cash equivalents and flexibility in funding
through having available sources of financing.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and
above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group maintained cash at bank and on hand of
HK$1,061,136,000 (2012: HK$794,195,000) that is
expected to be readily available to meet the cash
outflows of its financial liabilities.

The table below analyses the Company’s and the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Less than
1 year Total
DR—F #at
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TET
Group AEE
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+TZA=+—H
Trade and bills payables JEAT BR TR N B AN SRR 157,836 157,836
Payables for payment processing XNRZGRIBERTR
solutions business ES P8 ANE 243,415 243,415
Other payables Hofth e < IR 277,968 277,968
Amount due to an associated company FEAT — B & A mIFR0E 69,964 69,964
Total Bt 749,183 749,183
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF
+t=ZA=+—H
Trade and bills payables JEA BR R N B AN SRR 170,576 170,576
Payables for payment processing FRNEE Y Y S
solutions business ES P8 ANE 136,414 136,414
Other payables Hofth & < 7R 152,575 152,575
Amount due to an associated company FEAT — B & A FIFRIE 4,082 4,082
Total 1Bz 463,647 463,647
Company ARE
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SRR (PR R QA

—g-=EEg

101

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total equity.

The Group does not have any borrowings as at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

J Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group's assets that were
measured at fair value at 31 December 2013.

R EE(E)

3.3 AFEMGF(E)
TRENAEER -_ZT—=F1+=A
—t+t—BERAFEFENEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— -t ] E=4 et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale AHHESR
financial assets BE
— Equity securities — AR FEFH - - 30,395 30,395
- - 30,395 30,395

The following table presents the Group’s assets that were
measured at fair value at 31 December 2012.

TREVWNAEBRN -_ZEZ——F+_A
=+ —BEATFEFENEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H E_i E=MH FEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET FET FET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BRFERA
through profit or loss wAM S ER
— Trading securities —BE5BEE 13,948 - - 13,948
Available-for-sale AIHHES R
financial assets BE
— Equity securities — IR 55 - - 27,267 27,267
13,948 - 27,267 41,215
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
between the fair value hierarchy classifications during the
year.

(a)  Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

(b)  Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

(c)  Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value level 3
financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future
cash flows are based on management’s best
estimates and the discount rate is a market related
rate for a similar instrument at the balance sheet
date.

3
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

3 BXRRER@

Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DTEMEE)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREINHEZZE—=FR=ZFT—=
financial instruments for the years ended 31 December FH+ZA=+—HAIFEE=RLR
2013 and 2012: TAZEF):
Available-
for-sale
financial
assets
AHHE
cREE
HK$'000
THETT
As at 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—HF—H 27,267
Fair value gain on revaluation recognised in REAM 2 E TR 2
other comprehensive income BAEATENR 2,951
Exchange realignment PE S 177
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+=-A=+—H 30,395
Total gain/(loss) for the year included in the NERBIEFEEETA
consolidated income statement for assets held i? WEmRZFR
at the end of the year Wzt (B518) 42 %8 -
Changes in unrealised gains/losses for REKG AR MREEZ FRREER
the year included in profit or loss at the ey ot
end of the year -
As at 1 January 2012 RZE——F— )5] = 23,800
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yeig — B A 6,106
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised Fﬁmiﬁﬂﬁlmﬁ@n 2
in other comprehensive income BRERAVEER (2,751)
Exchange realignment bE 3 A 112
As at 31 December 2012 R-T—_4F
+—-A=+—H 27,267

Total gain/(loss) for the year included in the
consolidated income statement for assets held
at the end of the year

Changes in unrealised gains/losses for
the year included in profit or loss at the
end of the year

RERFFFEETA
%?/\Llﬁl s3k < FA
=/ (BB e
F@%ﬁ)\mﬁﬁiéﬁ@ZﬁW%“ﬁ
Was, 1B &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(a)  Estimated impairment of intangible assets
The Group tests at least annually for impairment of
goodwill in accordance with accounting policy as stated
in note 2.10. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have
been determined based on the higher of the fair value less
costs to sell and value-in-use calculation of the underlying
assets.

An impairment charge of HK$11,864,000 was made on
the Group’s goodwill arising from the acquisition of
Merchant Support Co. Ltd. (“Merchant Support”) and MS
Car Credit Co., Ltd. (“MSCC”) (collectively, the “MS
Group”) during the year (2012: an impairment charge of
HK$24,600,000 was made on the Group’s electronics
power meters and solutions CGU), resulting in the
carrying amount of the CGU being written down to its
recoverable amount. Please refer to note 18 for more
details.
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TEHBFEEEEEEEZRAEEERK
BAFE -

()
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F A A & B 3 U 8 Merchant
Support Co. Ltd. ([ Merchant
Support]) K MS Car Credit Co., Ltd.
(TMscCl) (e i8 TMS &R & ) & &
2 B HURUE R 2 11,864,000
T(ZE—ZF  iAKEEE=
EmRBERTRZBCEEXBMED
BRI SZ 24,600,000/ 7T) + BEZ
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of investment in an associated company

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associated company is impaired. The recoverable amount
is determined as the higher of the associated company’s
fair value less costs to sell or its value in use. Please refer
to note 21 for more details.

Impairment of receivables

The Executive Directors determine the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on the
credit history of its customers and the current market
condition. The Directors reassess the provision
periodically.

Contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of fixed price
contracts as stated in note 2.22(b), the Group uses the
“percentage of completion method” to determine the
appropriate revenues, costs and work-in-progress (“WIP”)
to be recognised in a given period. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to the service
performed and accepted by the customers up to the
balance sheet date as a percentage of total services to be
performed.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the
Group needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each
contract, which is determined based on the estimated
total contract costs and total contract sum. If the actual
gross profit margin of each contract differs from the
management’s estimates, the contract cost and WIP to be
recognised within the next year will need to be adjusted
accordingly.

In addition, the Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, except for the provision made, there were
no expected losses, where the estimated total contract
costs exceed the total estimated contract revenue, and
needed to be recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Receivables from and payables for payment processing
solutions business

The Group recognises revenue from its payment
processing solutions business when services are rendered
which generally coincide when the underlying
transactions of the merchants (customers of the Group)
have been acknowledged by the relevant banks and
financial institutions, by which contractual right of the
Group and the merchants to receive cash flows from the
financial institutions is established and amount to be
received could be reliably estimated. The amounts are
normally acknowledged one day to a few days after the
occurrence of the underlying transactions and depending
on the calendar day (weekday or public holiday) that the
transactions fallen into. Accordingly, change in estimated
point of time when services are rendered may affect the
Group'’s income recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year. It may also significantly affect the
amount of receivable from banks and financial
institutions, and payable to customers for the payment
processing solutions business recognised on the Group's
consolidated balance sheet as at the year end date.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

4
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, 5 U A - Efilg A B E il 548
NET

Revenue, other income and other gains, net recognised during RERNBERZWA - EM U A & H M
the year are as follows: Wes FEET -

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2013 2012
—E—-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
(restated)
(E3)
Turnover W
Provision of telecommunication solutions IRILERRRT = 198,561 167,269
Provision of financial solutions RESRMBRAR 271,532 248,112
Provision of payment platform solutions RIS FEEERAR 102,515 87,546
Provision of payment processing solutions RN R FRBEE R R 399,521 81,904
Sales of electronic power meters and solutions HE BT EEMNK
BRI E 310,924 279,365
Licence income from an associated company e — g R T 2 T
(Note 35(a)) WA (K7t 35(a) 1,164 795
Others Hi 10,120 3,315
1,294,337 868,306
Other income E AU A
Interest income FLEMA 4,367 4,911
Value added tax refund RIBIN(ER 2,691 2,097
Subsidy income ETION 877 527
Rental income el A 2,096 2,178
Others Hib 4,139 1,713
14,170 11,426
Other gains, net H il es %58
Dividend income on financial assets at AT ER NG FIskEiE 2
fair value through profit or loss TREEZBREWA 64 20
Fair value gain on financial assets at BAFEF AR REBEZ
fair value through profit or loss TREE 2N T ERE 1,103 4,201
1,167 4,221
Turnover, other income and other B HMUAREAM

gains, net W Faa 1,309,674 883,953
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors consider the business from a product
perspective.

Due to continual expansion of the the Group, management has
changed its internal organisation structure to align more closely
with the Group's strategic decision and market dynamics to
better serve customers. In particular, separate business units has
been set up for its payment processing solutions business and
payment platform solutions business. The Group has adopted
the new organization structure as the reporting format effective
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The comparative
segment information has been restated to reflect the current
organization structure.

The Group is organised into five main operating segments in
these internal reports.

(@ Telecommunication solutions — principally engaged in
the provision of telecommunication platform operation
services and operation value-added services;

(b) Financial solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of information system consultancy, integration
and operation services and sales of information
technology products to financial institutions and banks;

(c)  Payment platform solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of mobile payment platform operation services
and operation value-added services;

(d)  Payment processing solutions — principally engaged in
provision of payment processing services, merchants
recruiting and related products and solutions; and

(e) Electronic power meters and solutions — principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
power meters, data collection terminals and provision of
information system consultancy services; and the research
and development of communication technology.
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6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenues and results for the year by

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

6 DEEHRG®

AEBFRNREB DB ZWAREEST

operating segment is as follows: wm
Electronic
Telecom- Payment Payment power
munication Financial platform  processing  meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions solutions Others Group
*ft BiitE
EffR SRBR TR REEE  EmREBR
i3 kS BRAZ BRAR kS it E@EG
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
TET FET TER TET TR TERL FET
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z-=F
TZREt-ALEE
Segment turnover PEEEE 198,561 272,784 104,578 399,521 310,924 11,284 1,297,652
Inter-segment turnover PEREEE - (1,252) (2,063) - - - (3,315)
Turnover from external customers RENGRE 7 B8 198,561 271,532 102,515 399,521 310,924 11,284 1,294,337
Segmental earning/(loss) NREVAEAER AR
before interest expense, taxes, BRHEZHE HE HE
depreciation and amortisation REBHEAER/(FB)
(“EBITDA”) and before impairment ~ ([EBITDA )
of intangible assets 26,440 13,942 24,333 36,780 (3,955) (15,653) 81,887
Impairment of intangible assets EVEERE - - - (11,864) - - (11,864)
Segmental EBITDA DEEEBITDA 26,440 13,942 24,333 24916 (3,955) (15,653) 70,023
Depreciation bk 9,217) (2,436) (943) (16,866) (6,014) (2,806 (38,282)
Amortisation B (3,585) - - - (1,685) - (5,270)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) PEELER /(58 13,638 11,506 23,390 8,050 (11,654) (18,459) 26,471
Unallocated other income FOBREBBA 3,853
Unallocated corporate expenses FARGERY (87,997)
Share of profit of an FE(E—TEB 2 A a)E A
associated company 92,612
Loss on dilution of interest in an i LN 2
associated company BEER (6,883)
Profit before income tax KGR AEF 28,056
Income tax expense FERRY (1,455)
Profit for the year EREH 26,601
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6 DEEHRG®

Electronic
Telecom- Payment Payment power
munication Financial platform ~ processing  meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions solutions Others Group
X EiitE
EHER SRR XHTA RHEE  ERRER
G ES FANER BRAR GES £t SHEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TART TEL TER TART TERL TERT
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-E2--f%
(restated) +ZA=+-HLEE
(E5)
Segment turnover PELEE 167069 251533 89,405 81904 279365 4110 873,586
Inter-segment turnover NEREER - (3,421) (1,859) - - - (5,280)
Turnover from external customers ~ RESNIRE 2 2% 167,269 248,112 87,546 81,904 279,365 4110 868,306
Segmental EBITDA and before NEEVAERERZOE
impairment of intangible assets EBITDA 16,656 8,792 14,054 (78,833) (32,686) (38,035) (109,452)
Impairment of intangible assets EVEERE - - - - (24,600) - (24,600)
Segmental EBITDA HHEEBITDA 16,656 8,792 14,054 (78,833) (57,286) (38,035) (134,052)
Depreciation ik (8,843) (5,490) (1,359) (7,644) (7,185) (3,093) (33,614
Amortisation g (2,525) - - - (5,042) - (7,567)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) HREERT/(E58) 5,288 3,302 13,295 (86,477) (69,513) (41,128 (175,233)
Unallocated other income RAREMBA 8,934
Unallocated corporate expenses FARBERZ (81,382)
Share of profit of an FE(E— B2 A RlE A
associated company 73,616
Finance costs BENA (1,295)
Loss before income tax BAGRIESE (175,360)
Income tax credit ERES 863
Loss for the year FREE (174,497)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Unallocated corporate expenses represent costs that are used
for all segments, including depreciation of property, plant and
equipment of HK$1,946,000 (2012: HK$2,352,000),
depreciation of investment properties of HK$172,000 (2012:
HK$172,000) and amortisation of leasehold land of
HK$759,000 (2012: HK$760,000), respectively.

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2013 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December
2013 are as follows:

6 DEEHRG®

AOBECERTIERRIE D EAKA
DRBIEME - BE K& #EHTE 1,946,000
B (T — -4 :2,352,000/87C) * ®E
) ¥ I B 172,000 T( —F — = F:
172,000 70 ) & 0 & £ b # $5 759,000 78
T (ZF—_% : 760,000 ) ©

RZEBE—=F+_A=+—RzHEAE
RaEEBE_ZT-—=F+_A=+—H
LTEEZFRBEENRENT !

Electronic
Telecom- Payment Payment power
munication  Financial platform  processing  meters and Total
solutions ~ solutions ~solutions solutions solutions Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination Group
X BEHE
ERBR  SRER  XHTRE  RFEE Emk
:ES BR OBRER BRRR  BRAR Hi FAE #¥  £EAG
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TR TR TER TER TR TR
As at 31 December 2013 RZB-=§
+ZA=t-H
Segment assets NEREE 732,878 218,302 88,076 806,116 473,051 116,513 2,261,571 (1,120,062) 3,576,445
Segment liabilities PEBE (133,096) (177,195 (211,836) (700,289) (263,129) (414,998) (49,988) 1,120,062 (830,469)
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-E-=F
TZAZT-ALFE
Additions to non-current assets FRYEELRE
(excluding long-term deposits, (TRERSRS -
interest in an associated el —RBEREZ
company and available-for- ERRAGLE
sale financial assets) SREE) 3,201 2,810 108 56,686 2,142 579 4 - 65,567

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2012 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December
2012 are as follows:

R-TE——HE+-_A=+—HznEEE
FagEgE-—_ET——&+=-_A=+—H
IFEZIERDEENRENT !

Electronic
Telecom- Payment Payment power
munication  Financial platform  processing  meters and Total
solutions ~ solutions solutions  solutions  solutions Others  Unallocated  Elimination Group
it EEHE
@R eREBR XNTR R5EE Emk
DS TR BATE  BAIR BAIR 2t ROE B SR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TEL TEL T TEL TERL TEL TEL
Asat 31 December 2012 (restated) ~ R=B-ZF
TZR=Zt-H(ES)
Segment assets NEREE 692,579 184,007 62,089 383,384 531,907 132,852 2,237,523 (1,032,042) 3,192,299
Segment liabilities HEERE (125563)  (139,303)  (206,165) ~ (382,126) ~ (314804)  (323943) (51,052 1032042  (510914)
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-B-CF
(restated) TZAZt-BLFE(EF))
Additions to non-current assets FRBEELRE
(excluding long-term deposits, (TefERBRS -
interest in an associated EfE—FBERTZ
company and available-for- BRRAHLE
sale financial assets) SREE) 18,019 4314 229 41,745 1576 2,163 - - 68,046
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets including additions
resulting from acquisition through business combinations.

Revenues of approximately HK$292,269,000 (2012:
HK$244,110,000) are derived from a single external customer.
These revenues are attributable to the telecommunication
solutions segment of HK$187,966,000 (2012:
HK$153,572,000) and payment platform solutions segment of
HK$102,376,000 (2012: HK$87,546,000) and others of
HK$1,927,000 (2012: HK$2,992,000) in the PRC.

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

Aok £ T 5 0 % B ik

DEER (®)

FRBEENAEBRREME  BFE MK
BARBIZEENRE  BREBEEBE
PHETRBEENARE

U A H 49292,269,00078 70 (—ZF — —4F ¢
244,110,000 70) EA BB —INFEEF ©
ZERADRIREBFENENFERTED
%8 /187,966,000 jo( — & — = F:
153,572,000 70) W R F &R A E
248 £102,376,0008 L ( = T — = F ¢
87,546,000% 7T ) & E A I8 B 1,927,000 4
(=T — =% :2,992,000/87T) °

WEFRIRE Y ERHRR RS A BB BR
— B SEHE - REAERABESE
BEBHE -

NEMZHER —RAEGIET - AE
ERERBIIBEL 2 WARAREE K
WmRBWITARE -
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6  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6

The Group is principally domiciled in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Japan and Macau. The Group's turnover by geographical
location, which is determined by the location in which the
turnover are generated from, is as follows:

PEER ()

AEBTEREE  PEAE  HARE
FIREMD o REBIR IR 2 & EBEIRZ L2

HEAZMEEHINNAT

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2013 2012

—g—-= —EF——-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Mainland China B KR 1,255,417 816,377
Hong Kong B 10,007 18,531
Japan H 7 21,986 26,457
Macau Y PY 6,927 6,941
1,294,337 868,306

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding long term deposits,
interest in an associated company and available-for-sale
financial assets) and current assets by geographical location,
which is determined by the geographical location in which the
asset is located, is as follows:

REBLZEEMEM ZIERBDEE (TR

BEREZRe  EHE-HEBEEQ

Az iEm N

AHEESREE) MDD EERMELR

&I

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2013 2012
—ZE-= —ET—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET &

Non-current assets IRBEE
Mainland China SlEipN] 173 259,023 233,509
Hong Kong N 692 1,498
Japan HAR 2,280 14,965
261,995 249,972

Current assets RBEE

Mainland China E)ETpNS 1,267,181 916,693
Hong Kong B 233,533 284,637
Japan HAR 211,822 245,607
Macau JEPY 6,922 7,141

1,719,458

1,454,078
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7 HUMEESZAX

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses, REHERA - HERAX - THEBRARER
administrative expenses and impairment of intangible assets are BERBEFAZHLZ - oFmT

analysed as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLHEFE

2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN B & 2,870 2,600
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRBINE 40,228 35,966
(Note 16) (Hfat16)
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 15) SEMEITE (Wt 15) 172 172
Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 17) TAE sy (it 17) 1,001 1,036
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) BIVEE#BE (M 18) 5,028 7,291
Employee benefit expense (including Directors’ EERINAX (BIEES 483,690 415,527
emoluments) (Note 9) &) (Bt 9)
Costs of inventories sold (including EHFERA(BEEFE 380,508 288,644
(written back of provision)/provision (BEE®B),BH)
for inventories) (Note 22) (Hiat22)
Operating lease rentals in respect of land T REF 2 LETLY 37,501 35,545
and buildings itk
Operating lease rentals in respect of equipment Rz EeBOES 16,775 14,967
Research and development costs B9 B P B A 146,532 145,608
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WERERE (190) (240)
equipment 2 Weas
(Written back of provision)/provision for FEUER FORME (B m B 5), (6,644) 2,158
impairment of trade receivables, net R
(Written back of provision)/provision for s (BRBE), B 4,363) 14,541
inventories
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 18) BIVEERE (M 18) 11,864 24,600
NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS 8 ISMERBEFR
The net foreign exchange loss recognised in the consolidated HE-T-=F+-A=+"RLEFE"
income statement and included in administrative expenses for RERE Wias & P iR BT ATTEUR A 2 9
the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to I fs 18 #73% 31,983,000 8 L (= F — =

HK$31,983,000 (2012: HK$22,347,000).

£ 122,347,000 7T) °
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9

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTY)

9

BERIAX (BEEEHE)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2013 2012
—E—= —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
Wages and salaries TERF® 411,130 354,346
Pension costs and social security costs RIRS A KAt G IRIER AR 72,537 61,102
Employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary —RWE AR & 8 &)
(Note 27(b)) =&l (Haz27b) 23 79
483,690 415,527
Notes: et
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) BEERTHRARHNS

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to

waive any emolument during the year (2012: Nil).

The Directors’ emoluments for the year are equivalent to key management
compensation (2012: same). The remuneration of every Director and chief

executive for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

FRAVBEEREXFAEREEAMES L (=
T—F )

FREFHLENNEBEREEM(—F =
R BE-T-=FT-A=t—AL
T GREFRAHLROMENT -

Employer’s
contribution
Discretion- to pension
Fees Salary ary bonus scheme Total
BEzEHhKE
e e BT sHEMER act
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$’000
Name of Director EEpg FTER FTER TER FTER TER
Executive Directors HTES
Cheung Yuk Fung KEE& 360 - - - 360
Kui Man Chun RES
(Chief Executive Officer) (1TB#BEE) - 1,680 2,600 15 4,295
Xu Wensheng & - 1,282 2,400 15 3,697
Li Wenjin EYE - 1,080 2,000 15 3,095
Xu Chang Jun ®BEE - 947 2,000 15 2,962
360 4,989 9,000 60 14,409
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard B33 120 - - - 120
120 - - - 120
Independent Non-Executive BUFHITES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai BiRE 100 - - - 100
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 100 - - - 100
Xu Sitao HRR 100 - - - 100
300 - - - 300
780 4,989 9,000 60 14,829
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9 EEEINFEXX(BEEEME) @
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Hiat - (#8)
@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) (@) BERTRARMNS (B)
The remuneration of every Director and chief executive for the year ended BE-_ZT——F+-A=+—BILFE  54&E
31 December 2012 is set out below: FERITBEHNM ST
Employer’s
contribution
Discretion- to pension
Fees Salary ary bonus scheme Total
EBE2EAKE
fizka #e BIBTEAL FHEIfER #&t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
Name of Director fE3iEd FTET FHET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HiTES
Cheung Yuk Fung R 360 - - - 360
Kui Man Chun RER
(Chief Executive Officer) (7T 4E%) - 1,680 2,200 14 3,894
Xu Wensheng 3¢ - 1,209 1,800 14 3,023
Li Wenjin ENE - 1,080 1,500 14 2,594
Xu Chang Jun %®BEE - 876 1,500 14 2,390
360 4,845 7,000 56 12,261
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard Rz 120 - - - 120
120 - - - 120
Independent Non-Executive BUFHITES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai BiRE 100 - - - 100
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER 100 - - - 100
Xu Sitao HER 100 - - - 100
300 - - - 300
780 4,845 7,000 56 12,681
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) BERBHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for FAEBAFEREREHFALEENEES (=
the year included four Directors (2012: four). The emoluments payable to E-—F R AFEENBRT -R(ZF
the remaining one (2012: one) individual during the year are as follows: —ZF —B)ATZMERIIAT
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+T—-HLEFE
2013 2012
—E-= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEREYF G 2,045 1,476
Pension cost RIRE AR
— defined contribution plan —EREHSEE 101 88

2,146 1,564
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTY) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
The emoluments fall within the following band:

HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000

9 EEEIFAXZ(BEEEM)®

et : (4&)

(b) AERSHAL(E)
BEFTolAER

Number of individuals
AH
2013 2012
—g-—= —T——F

1,000,001 77T — 1,500,000 % 7T - -
1,500,001 7% 7T —2,000,000 7 7T - 1
2,000,001 7 7 — 2,500,000 7 7T

10 FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings IRITIERK

10 BEKA

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2013 2012
—E—-= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

- 1,295
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 11 FEHAX(ER)
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BBEFEST R AFE R FERT & MR
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. E165%(-FE— —4F :16.5%) & - i§
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the SNEFIFIBRIAF REFTERB SR - &
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation AREFBLEREERERZHMRTE -
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
For the year ended
31 December
BE+T-A=t—-HLEE
2013 2012
—E-—=£F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHET
Current tax WA
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBFIEH - -
— Overseas taxation —BINATE 2,569 617
Deferred tax IRFETIA (1,114) (1,338)
Adjustments in respect of prior years BIEFEHE - (142)
Income tax expense/(credit) PSR (K%) 1,455 (863)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:

R ER B B P 15 75 BT A1) 6 5 TR B R A
RiRa B SN F AV KM ER
B RS

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—RHLEE

2013 2012
—E—= —FE-—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER THT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BrATIS SRR R, (BR) 28,056 (175,360)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable BN EBRELEE 2
to loss in the respective countries AR 2 THIE 6,262 (38,134)
Tax effects of: MBTE
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (20,014) (18,599)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes FARB S AR 2 18,443 17,707
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses PRBERERZHIAFKSE (17,216) (4,840)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax W BRI FT 1S R ETE R 2 T ITE
was recognised g 13,980 43,145
Adjustments in respect of prior years BIEFEHE - (142)
Income tax expense/(credit) PRSBF (%) 1,455 (863)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22.3% (2012:
21.7%). The change is caused by a change in the profitability
mix of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries.

IEFEBERREAE223%(ZFE——F
21.7%)  BERETIAEE 2B R RR
ARz 2R hEE HIBEBATE -
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12

13

14

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$81,404,000 (2012: HK$55,289,000).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic

Basic earning/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the
profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

12

13

14

RRFREBFEABGLER

ANBIERIEE AEGEEST,404,000%
TT(—ZF— 4 : 55,289,000/ 7T) R AR
R IERRERE -

RE

HE-T-=F+-A=t-ALTE
AL WENREREARS (ZF—=
)

BREF (BE)

@ EXx
BRERRF](BEB) HIEAQBE
=B AEESF (BB BRFRE
BAT LB INE T BT E -

For the year ended
31 December

BET-A=+—HLHFE

2013 2012
—E—-= —ET—F
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the — AR B RERIFH AREE
Company (HK$’000) S#H,(E18) (F#7T) 30,045 (160,763)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B BT E BN
in issue (thousands) FHe (TR 2,768,052 2,673,430
FRREAREF,(EE)
Basic earning/(loss) per share (HK$ per share) (BET) 0.01 (0.06)

Diluted

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the net
income and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive shares. The Company has three categories of
potentially dilutive shares: convertible preference shares
issued by a subsidiary, share options issued by a
subsidiary and share options issued by the associated
company.

(b) #E

BEREBEERIZEIRMEBEES
Bt 2 R T F B WA RR R 37T
SNVERAINE I B E - RAEIE
BREEESRD - —HHBAR
BITZ AR ELR  —RHEAR
BT BREN —FBEARETLZ
BEAHE -
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14 EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)
Potential dilutive effects arise from convertible preference
shares issued by a subsidiary and share options issued by
the associated company. The convertible preference
shares issued by a subsidiary are assumed to be converted
into ordinary shares of the Company.

For share options issued by the associated company, the
exercise of the outstanding share options in the associated
company would have a dilutive effect. The exercise of the
share options in the associated company would be
dilutive if the net profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company will decrease as result of decrease in the
Group’s share of profit of the associated company and
increase in loss on dilution of interest in the associated
company. A calculation is done to determine the number
of shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average annual fair value of the
associated company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options of the associated company. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number
of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options of the associated company.

The share options issued by a subsidiary were not
assumed to be exercised as they would have an anti-
dilutive impact to the basic earning per share for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Aok £ T 5 0 % B ik

14 SRERN(EE) @

(b)

i P ACG)
Ba#syEELs —RNB AR
17 2 AT AR S S i B — g 2 8 3] 3%
2B - —EMNBARIETZA
BEEERDBRAIERASNAEE
bl

FREEE DRI EIT 2B S - 1T7(E
BrE N B RITEBEAER e AR #
SBRE - MASE RGNS R ENER
A RREE N R 2 i R 1R
IS BN R RIS 1A AREIG3 A
FER A RIITER S N R 2 B E
HEAA#ETZE - BEARAFERK
B2 EE GREE R R 2 F
BEERFEEE) IIRER 2 Q5
ZARITEBEREMMN 2 R EEE
BFFHE o EXMETE2BRMEE Tk
BREH 2 QR BREETEZE
BITIROEA -

3R — PO 2 73 17 2 IR T
BT EABMERES R BE
T =LA t—AILFEZS
BEARFELREEPE -

For the year ended
31 December

2013
BE-Z-=F
+=A=+-H
ILEE
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (HK$'000) A A=A AEE R (F47T) 30,045
Assuming exercise of all outstanding share options fRR—MEME A RIEIT 2 MARITE
issued by the associated company (HK$'000): BRI TR (TAT)
— Decrease in share of profit of the associated — EIRREE DR R AR
company (2,819)
— Increase in loss on dilution of the associated company ~— — FA— 5 & A B 2 BE 1R I (56,201)
Adjusted loss attributable to equity holders of RAEESREEEER 2 AAF
the Company used to determine diluted BaFA ANEERHESE
loss per share (HK$'000) (F#&T) (28,975)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BETERBIEFEE (Fi)
in issue (thousands) 2,768,052
Adjustments for assumed conversion of SRR E R —HNE R R#T
convertible preference shares issued AT B ST R B 2 (%)
by a subsidiary (thousands) 8,782
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BREEERE TRRNE
for diluted loss per share (thousands) FHE(FR) 2,776,834
Diluted loss per share attributable to the equity AR RAARGERETES
holders of the Company (HK$ per share) (BT (0.01)
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14 EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 14 BRERN(EE)@
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b #E(GE)
Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December HEZT——F+ZA=1+—HIEF
2012 is the same as the basic loss per share as the IEpA=Tie v =pi Lk & VN =3ibiE
conversion of potential ordinary shares in relation to the [ - by R e — R B A BT
outstanding convertible preference shares issued by a BTN RRB LR - —FHE
subsidiary, share options issued by a subsidiary and share NEIEETT 2 BB AAE K — RE B & N A) B
options issued by an associated company would have an TEREEEBELTBR e
anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share. HEREABEEERBEETE -
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 REWE
Group Company
REME AN H
Buildings Buildings
BF BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—HF—H
Cost XA 3,217 5,157
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (808) (1,300)
Net book amount BREFE 2,409 3,857
Year ended BE-Z—=F
31 December 2012 TZA=Zt+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount HUAREHE 2,409 3,857
Transfer from property, plant and EAaME  FE M
equipment (Note 16) R (Hfat16) 168 -
Depreciation e (172) (258)
Closing net book amount HiAR BRI F B 2,405 3,599
At 31 December 2012 R=ZB-=—%+=-HA=+-—H
Cost AR 3,446 5,157
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (1,041) (1,558)
Net book amount AREDFE 2,405 3,599
Year ended BE-—Z2-—=%
31 December 2013 TZA=Zt+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount HYEREFE 2,405 3,599
Depreciation e (172) (258)
Closing net book amount HYABRTEF (B 2,233 3,341
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=5+ZA=+—8H
Cost AR 3,446 5,157
Accumulated depreciation St E (1,213) (1,816)
Net book amount BREEE 2,233 3,341

Fair value (Note) NEE (B EE) 11,961 17,897
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Note:

The fair value of the investment properties located at Level 15 to 17, Yindu
Building, No. 67 Fu Cheng Road, Haidian District, Beijing City, PRC (3L /8/E
[& B A 67 5 IREPAE 15-1712) as at 31 December 2013 was assessed by the
independent and professionally qualified valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, based

on current prices in an active market.

At at 31 December 2013, the Group had no contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2012: Nil)

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to

administrative expense (2012: same).

Interests in investment properties at their net book values are

analysed as follows:

Outside Hong Kong, held on: ~ &F#B 1)
Leases of between 10 to Z10ZE 50 5L
50 years I ]

Aok £ T 5 0 % B ik

15 REWHE @)
Bt -

IARIE RS B 67 B E R E15-171BZIRE
MER—Z—=F+-A=+—A2ZAFE BBIH
ELBRGEMEETHBHERAR  RERMEZ
BATEETE ©

W-_ZE—=F+-A=+—0 A&=E#H
BEEBBRBERREZANER(ZZ
——F )

FAMBMERXCHATRER(ZZ
—ZF AR e

BREMERSIREFESTO DN :

Group Company
REE NN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H BR+=-—A=+—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F ZEB-—-Ff ZEBE-=F —ZE—=-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FERT T
2,233 2,405 3,341 3,599

The following amounts have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement:

AT 2 RERE KR R -

Group
KEH
For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2013 2012
—E-= —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Rental income HEWA 2,096 2,178
Direct operating expenses arising from BEBSWAZREDE
investment property that generated rental income — FrE4L 2 HERK SR (375) (428)
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15

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment property that did not generate rental income during
the year.

The period of leases whereby the Group and the Company
leases out its investment properties under operating leases
ranged from 1 to 2 years.

At 31 December 2013, the future aggregate minimum rentals
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as

15

BEWE®)
ER LEEBRSWAZIREYEL
EETMEECLEY -

AEERARRRBELEHENEHERE
MEZBPNF1E25 -

RZZB—=F+-"HA=+—8  REFTA
B EMROZ RRKE K S BEN

follows: N
Group
EE
2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Not later than 1 year TBE1F 2,646 1,665
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years HRiE 1 FETRESF - 224

2,646 1,889
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 Y% - BEKRE
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Group
5@
Office
furniture
Leasehold and Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE WAE
B2 MELE RARRE BERRE RE et
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
FHT FHRT FHRT FHRT FaR FaR
At 1 January 2012 R-Z-Z%-f-H
Cost A 42,767 17,617 191,055 40,105 17,498 309,042
Accumulated depreciation ZHINE (9,114) (9,543) (152,509) (18,385) (9,307) (198,858)
Net book amount BEFE 33,653 8,074 38,546 21,720 8,191 110,184
Year ended BE-Z--F
31 December 2012 +-A=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 33,653 8,074 38,546 21,720 8,191 110,184
Additions RE - 310 19,507 31,946 312 52,075
Transfer to investment properties BAREME (168) - - - - (168)
(Note 15) (Hfzt15)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—EHBAR - - 216 - - 216
Disposals (Note 31(b)) & (e 31h) - - (963) (45) - (1,008)
Depreciation nE (2,413) (3,180) (19,419) (7,631) (3,323) (35,966)
Exchange realignment EH B 227 29 (15) 440 25 706
Closing net book amount HRREFE 31,299 5233 37,872 46,430 5,205 126,039
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-ZF
+=A=+-H
Cost A 42,858 18,029 214,111 74,133 23,79 372,927
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (11,559) (12,796) (176,239) (27,703) (18,591) (246,888)
Net book amount FEFE 31,299 5,233 37,872 46,430 5,205 126,039
Year ended BE-F-=F%
31 December 2013 +ZRA=+t-ALEE
Opening net book amount BREFE 31,299 5,233 37,872 46,430 5,205 126,039
Additions RE - - 9,555 52,914 3,021 65,490
Disposals (Note 31(b)) W& (Hrzt310) - - - (13) - 13)
Depreciation E (2,001) (2,273) (16,144) (16,759) (3,051) (40,228)
Exchange realignment EH B 830 114 533 1,799 125 3,401
Closing net book amount HRERE A 30,128 3,074 31,816 84,371 5,300 154,689
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=%
+=A=+-8
Cost AR 44,027 17,790 226,216 129,309 26,480 443,822
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (13,899) (14,716) (194,400) (44,938) (21,180) (289,133)
Net book amount REFE 30,128 3,074 31,816 84,371 5,300 154,689
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16

17

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16

Depreciation expense of HK$25,897,000 (2012:
HK$19,329,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
HK$491,000 (2012: HK$723,000) in selling expenses and
HK$13,840,000 (2012: HK$15,914,000) in administrative
expenses.

As at 31 December 2013, banking facilities of approximately
HK$23,021,000 (2012: HK$22,385,000) were secured by
buildings with a net book value of HK$14,147,000 (2012:
HK$14,863,000).

LEASEHOLD LAND 17

The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent operating
lease prepayments and their net book amounts are analysed as
follows:

ME - BERRKE®

WER 25,897,000 T (T — 4 :
19,329,000 7T ) B i S5 E B AN AP 3 8
491,000 T (= F— =4 : 723,000/8 7T)
PRIHER I+ &13,840,000 8L (=%
— % 115,914,000 70) ERTTREAX

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—8 " R{ITEE
#923,021,000% T( = T — = F:
22,385,000/ 7T ) LA BR T % 1E 14,147,000
BIL(ZZF— T4 1 14,863,00078 7T ) By 18
FIEHE IR o

HE L

AEEREE LR EEAERNBALE
MAFR - HREFESTOT

Group Company
REE ¥ NN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+-—H R+=-—A=+—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-= —T—F =Z=-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHEIT FERT FET

Outside Hong Kong, held on: FBRIN
Leases of between ZI10E506F 2
10 to 50 years HOFE 36,653

37,330 25,030 25,790
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17 LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

The movement of the net book amount for leasehold land is as
follows:

Aok £ T 5 0 % B ik

17 HEEL#E)

ME iz REVFEZBHINT

Group Company
AEH bNNE

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —T—F =Z=-= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT FET T
Opening net book amount EiYER T FE 37,330 38,277 25,790 26,549
Amortisation 5 (1,001) (1,036) (760) (759)
Exchange realignment & H 324 89 - -
Closing net book amount B4R RSB 36,653 37,330 25,030 25,790

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$60,000 (2012:
HK$58,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$941,000 (2012: HK$978,000) in administrative expenses,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, banking facilities of approximately
HK$23,021,000 (2012: HK$22,385,000) were secured by
leasehold land with a total net carrying amount of
HK$3,657,000 (2012: HK$3,642,000).

F R 60,0008 L(=F—=4F : 58000
B2 EHEBREIIREEXRALIHE
941,000 7T (ZZF—=4 : 978,000/8 L)
RITRERAE -

W_E—=F+-_F=+—8 RTEE
#923,021,000% ( = & — = F:
22,385,000/ 7L ) Jh A Bk M OF E 2 5
3,657,000 7t ( =& — — 4 : 3,642,000
HBIT) 2 E + s R o
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 BFEEE
Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand development  In-progress

Goodwill Brand name  Licences  contracts costs  technology Total
EHREAR
XPLE  ERZEM

HE miE itiE G REmA  HEPR ek

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL THER TEL TEL TEL TR

At 1 January 2012 R=%2-=%-A-H

Cost AN 249,642 4,935 - 49,559 25,022 6,596 335,754
Accumulated ZEtEH
amortisation - (4,935 - (19,978) (21,892) (2,419) (49,224)
Accumulated ZERERE
impairment loss (156,571) - - (29,006) (108) - (185,685)
Net book amount REFE 93,071 - - 575 3,022 4,177 100,845
Year ended BE-8-=F

31 December 2012 TZAZ+-HLEFE
Opening net book HREFE

amount 93,071 - - 575 3,022 4177 100,845
Acquisition of WENBRT

subsidiaries 6,602 - 8,381 772 - - 15,755
Amortisation charge BT - - (1,747) (1,352) (2,877) (1,315) (7,291)
Impairment loss HEBR (24,600) - - - - - (24,600)
Exchange realignment ~ [E 5 3% (660) - 134 5 9) 19 (511)
Closing net book MR SE

amount 74,413 - 6,768 - 136 2,881 84,198

At 31 December 2012 R=-F-—%

+=A=+-H
Cost B 130,376 4974 8,535 5,762 25,048 6,648 181,343
Accumulated REtEE
amortisation - (4,974) (1,767) (5,762) (24,912) (3,767) (41,182)
Accumulated ZEtRERE
impairment loss (55,963) - - - - - (55,963)

Net book amount REFE 74,413 - 6,768 - 136 2,881 84,198
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 B|EEE @)
Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand development  In-progress
Goodwill Brand name  Licences  contracts costs technology Total
ERRERR
EFEE EAzu#
kS i faTiE RE#H RBRA  HRPEHN EEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAR TER TEn TEn TEn TEn
Year ended BE-E2-=F
31 December 2013 TZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book HOEmFE
amount 74,413 - 6,768 - 136 2,881 84,198
Additions NE - - - - 77 - 77
Amortisation charge BESH - - (3,585) - (93) (1,350) (5,028)
Impairment loss HEBE
(see below) (RTX) (11,864) - - - - - (11,864)
Exchange realignment  [E 3 8% 824 - 145 - 4 64 1,037
Closing net book MEEmEE
amount 63,373 - 3,328 - 124 1,595 68,420
At31 December 2013 R-FE-=f
t=B=t+-H
Cost WK 131,750 5,116 8,777 5,925 25,837 6,836 184,241
Accumulated DEtEH
amortisation - G116 (G449 (925 (25713) (5,241)  (47,444)
Accumulated R RERR
impairment loss (68,377) - - - - - (68,377)
Net book amount ERFE 63,373 - 3,328 - 124 1,595 68,420

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$4,935,000 (2012:
HK$6,566,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$93,000 (2012: HK$725,000) in administrative expenses,

respectively.

FER EEEA4,935008T(—T— =
F 6,566,000 70 ) TR SHE R AN $5 &
93,0008 7L (==& — =4 : 725,000/ 1)
RITHRBALZH -
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according
to operating segment. As at 31 December 2013, goodwill of
HK$63,373,000 is allocated to the electronic power meters
(2012: HK$61,215,000 and HK$13,198,000 are allocated to
the electronic power meters and solutions segment and arising
from the acquisition of MS Group, respectively).

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on the
higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use
calculation.

Due to the change in market condition, goodwill of
HK$11,864,000 arising from the acquisition of MS Group was
considered to be fully impaired by the management during the
six months ended 30 June 2013, after taking into account the
operating environment and market conditions at that point of
time. The key assumptions used in calculating the recoverable
amount of the CGU as at 30 June 2013 were as follows:

Compound annual growth rate EAFRER
Pre-tax discount rate T ATARIR &

For the purpose of annual impairment tests for goodwill,
management prepared its pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. Management prepared its budget within the five-
year period using the estimated growth rates stated below. 3%
growth rate is used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the five-
year period for the electronic power meters. The growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
respective countries.

The key assumptions used for calculations in 2013 and 2012
are as follows:

Electronic power meters and solutions segment:

%
WATFERE
BB

Gross margin
Compound annual growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate

18

BILEE )

PR (E R e

PRRRBREB S BRBATHA 2 AEBEE
CELEMN R-TE—=ZF+=-_F=1+—
B B263,373,000 8 T B REEREE
Em(ZZT— = F:61,215000% 7T &
13,198,000 LD R B EEEFTEEm
REERARSFBURFEEREMSEE) -

ReELBM 2 RESBERQFER
HEXALFEREENRSETHETE

ARERZEERERTRE BE-Z
—=FRXA=1THIEXEAR  REWKEMS
EEZEE11,864, oooiﬁﬁa%&#@@%ﬁ
BREERE FTERSEABUNZ
—=F XA *‘T’EZ—JW@@%@S}:{F@IK
RRAE

12%
21%

RTFEHEREAREN  BEERE
it AF MM BTEERERTAIR
METEA - BEEERENTFEANEZL
FATMEIEREET AEHERS
MEZEREABHTEERHER B3%
EREDHITEBEBREBMERRNKE
FHMEE -

TE=FRCB-CFZFEEMRA

FAsRfRAR a0

BRI BERRBRARIE

2013 2012
—E-= T
20-26% 23-29%
34% 35%

19% 20%
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 BEEE®
Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued) AR ENR (E)
Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past EEERRAAERREE T RNE Y TE
performance and its expectations of the market development. HETHEEEMNE - IRAZEAFER
The compound annual growth rates used are consistent with TG TER — B - FTEA 2R E AR
the forecasts of the market. The discount rate used is pre-tax Bl LD FEAERE 2 SRR o
and reflects specific risks relating to the segment.
For the electronic power meters and solutions segment, the BEEEEMRBATRSBEME - ERN
recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-use exceeded FREBEFESHZAJRESEBHR =
carrying value as at 31 December 2013. A reduction in T—=Ft+_A=+—HZKEE-¥E&
compound annual growth rate to 31% would remove the FEERFIVEI1%GEERGREEE -
remaining headroom.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 19 AHLESREE
The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets include equity AEEAHREESCREERERAZTS
securities with the following details: BT
Group Company
REME RRF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F ZET—=-F IZE-=F IZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THETT THET THET
At 1 January w—A—H 27,267 23,800 20,800 23,800
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wk — B AR - 6,106 - -
Fair value gain/(loss) on B2 A FER
revaluation (E18) 2,951 (2,751) 3,200 (3,000)
Exchange realignment [ 5 177 112 - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 30,395 27,267 24,000 20,800
Unlisted investments outside ~ &FBHINZ IELTERE
Hong Kong 30,395 27,267 24,000 20,800
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19

20

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 19 AHEESHEE®)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial assets AN ESREEZREBIA NG
are denominated in the following currencies: A -
Group Company
rEE N
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—H Rt+t=B=+—~H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—ZE—-= —E——F ZE-=F —ET——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET FET FET
RMB ARE 6,395 6,467 - -
us$ e 24,000 20,800 24,000 20,800
30,395 27,267 24,000 20,800
The fair value of unlisted securities are based on future free JEFTEE Y AT (EZBIEEEGFK
cash flows attributable to shareholders discounted using a AHECESRERAERR = EA
discount rate based on the risk free interest rate and the risk BN EBE YRR EERBEHE (—2—=
premiums attributable to the underlying investment (2013: £F 1 30.43%) °
30.43%).
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND DUE 20 RMB LR 2 RARBY BN
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES i) PNEETe]
Company
PN
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=5F —ET—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Investments at cost, unlisted shares FELETIRGD - IRIRERK A 999,384 851,737
Less: Provision for impairment R ERE (14,268) -
985,116 851,737
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (a)) FEM M 8 1 BRI (5t (a) 352,911 445,373
Less: Provision for impairment OB (39,695) (39,695)
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 313,216 405678
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note (a)) JETB B 2 R FIE (M 7% (a)) 567,699 568,834
The investments in group undertakings are recorded at cost, MEBEE I BIREA e HRE
which is the fair value of the consideration paid. T AT(EEGE o a
Note: Wit
(a):  The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free, and repayable @: BEMBATZRALHAEER . @B RARS

on demand. BREN -



SRR (PR R QA

20

21

—E-ZEER 133

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND DUE
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2013:

Name

8

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business Solutions
Information Technology Limited

tREE S ERERTERAR

Beijing Hi Sunsray Information Technology
Limited
ERERERRRESRMARAT

Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology Limited
HNEEETHEERAR

Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited
HEEERBE S RITERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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RBLARI2REREW BN
B BB 2 B FRIE (1)

20

RZBE-—Z=F+ZA=+—8B TEWE

NRIZBEWNT
Place of incorporation and Principal activities and Particulars of issued share Interest
type of legal entity place of operation capital/registered capital held
ERRIBHRECERER TEEBRERDE BRITRE/EMEREE iigs: &3
PRC, limited liability company Provision of financial solutions, HK$100,000,000 100%'
FE - BRAR services and related products 100,000,000 7T
in PRC
EhRERHERBATRRBRABER
PRC, limited liability company Provision of telecommunication HK$160,000,000 (2012: HK$80,000,000) 100%'
HE - BRAT solutions, and operation 160,000,0007 7 (=% — =% + 80,000,003 7T)
value-added services in PRC
EHERHERRATRRESEERYE
PRC, limited liability company Manufacturing and sales of electronic - RMB53,400,000 100%!
T8 BERAA power meters and solutions in PRC - AR 53,400,0007C
EHREERHETHEERR
S
PRC, limited liability company Provision of mobile payment platform  HK$20,000,000 100%'
FE - BRAF solutions and services in PRC 20,000,000 7T
EREREFRIANT aRANRERE
PRC, limited liability company Provision of payment processing RMB160,000,000 (2012: RMB100,000,000) 100%'

BT ABRAR ([SXF)

solutions in PRC

T FRAA

ERERHENRIRERRD T

! Interest held indirectly by the Company.
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group’s spin-off of
PAX Global to be separately listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, PAX Global became an associated company of the
Group. On the date when control ceased, the Group's retained
interest in PAX Global was fair valued, and this give rise to the
difference between the carrying value of investment in an
associated company of the Group and its share of net assets
value of PAX Global.

21

AR 160,000,000 70
(ZZ—=%: AR%100,000,0007)

Vo AREREEREER -
R—EBE AT s

RZZE-—ZF+-A=+TH BAREAEE
DIFBREBEBBIABEL LT BERK
BERMKAARBEZBZERR - RMFLE
ZHIRER  ARENBERRRE 2
BARNFEFE  ERRAEEBEQF
ZEREZEAERENAERREEFE
FrEFHIRER -
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY 21 R—EBEQTZ2ES @
(Continued)
Group Company
REE ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E-—F ZE-=F —E—-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,458,419 1,373,366 316,862 316,862
Share of profit FE(E %A 92,612 73,616 - -
Share of other comprehensive  JE{f E fh 2 F Uk a5
income 11,826 2,717 - -
Share of other reserve FE(RE AL 5,858 8,720 - -
Dilution of interest in an S ) /N b
associated company ZEE (WEEG)
(Note (i)) (7,034) - - -
Rt+—A=+—R82
Net assets at 31 December BEFE 1,561,681 1,458,419 316,862 316,862

Note (i):

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain director and employees of
PAX Global exercised their share options granted pursuant to a share option

scheme set up on 1 December 2010. As a result of the exercise of these share
options, the Group's interest in PAX Global was diluted from 42.80% as at 31
December 2012 to 42.51% as at 31 December 2013. A loss on dilution of interest
in an associated company of HK$6,883,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement, including release of reserve of credited to the consolidated
income statement of HK$151,000, during the year.

ez ) -

HE-T-=F+-A=1+—ALFE BEFXET
EZREETERBER-_Z—ZHF+-A—BRIUNE
IREEAT B E 2 AR - ZEBRERITEERAER
REBRFZESEFH -_T—=—F+=-A=+—8x2
1280%HEE T —=FF+_A=1+—"H2Z24251%°
FR - R HEBE R R 2 R #E 518 6,883,0008 7T
PRERERTPHER  BEBLTAGERGERZEE
151,000 7T °
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

(Continued)

Set out below is the associated company of the Group as at 31

December 2013, which, in the opinion of the directors, is
material to the Group. The associated company as listed below
has share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are
held directly by the Group; their principal place of business is
in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States.

Name

=L

31 December 2013
—F-=%t=-A=+-H
PAX Global

(Note a)
Bt b

(MisFa)

31 December 2012
—EB-ZH+=ZA=+-H
PAX Global

(Note a)
HERR

(MfiFa)

Note a:

Place of
incorporation
and kind of
legal entity
R L B
EEERER

Bermuda, limited
liability company
BHE  BRAA

Bermuda, limited
liability company
BRE ARRAA

Particular
of issued
share capital

ERITRAFE

1,044,517,000
ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each
1,044,517,000 %
BREE0.1ET
R

1,037,728,000
ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each
1,037,728,000 %
BREE1ET
R

PAX Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”) is principally engaged

in the development and sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sales

(“EFT-POS”) products and provision of related service.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the Group’s interest
in PAX Global, which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, was HK$1,385,280,000 (2012:
HK$710,400,000) and the carrying amount of the Group’s
interest was HK$1,561,681,000 (2012: HK$1,458,419,000).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s

interest in the associated company.

Aok £ T 5 0 % B ik

R—EBE LT 2 ER @)

XHEIR T —=Ft+_A=1t—H&EZF
RRUAEEMEBEAZAEEBZ R
Bl TREI ZBENREFEALER
EERBAEZEBBRBRZBAR  ZEHE
RAZEREEMBRTE - FELER -

Effective

Nature of interest Held ~ Measurement
relationship igsE P method
BEME BERER STERE
Note 35 42.51% Equity
BIEE35 g
Note 35 42.80% Equity
BIEE35 g

Kita: BERHMBERAD(EERE)) T2KSE
RERHEEFNHEMH((EFIHEH])
E A RIRHARRIRTS -

TE-—=F+-"A=+—8 KAEEH
BERK(EBBHMAER AR AT M)
¥ %5 N F B A1,385,280,00078 T( — &
— 4 : 710,400,000/ 70 ) * A5 EiE
R EREE A1,561,681,0008 (= —=
4 1,458,419,000787T) °

MEBBAKRERNE 2 AR 2 e 2 KA
afE-
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY 21 R—REBEARZERE @)

(Continued)

Extracted financial information of an associated company
Set out below are the extracted consolidated financial
information of PAX Global which are accounted for using the

equity method.

—MBE AN FENRE
TXBIIAEATE 2 B ERRE A B
BAREE -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H

2013 2012

—Eg—= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Non-current assets IEMBEE 8,384 10,494
Current assets MBEE

Cash and cash equivalents Re RIRSEEY 1,698,407 1,358,426

Restricted cash SREIES 16,613 16,173

Other current assets HEMREEE 1,109,404 808,667

Total current assets MENEERE 2,824,424 2,183,266
Current liabilities mEafE

Trade payables FEfFER X 445,541 224,879

Other payables and accruals H e 308 M BT RIR 275,072 131,301

Taxation payable e 1518 25,073 26,746

Total current liabilities M BEETE 745,686 382,926

Net assets BEFRE 2,087,122 1,810,834
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

(Continued)

Extracted financial information of an associated company

R—EBE AT 2R @)

—EBE LR BEENRE(E)

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=1+—HLEFE
2013 2012
—=E—= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue WA 1,472,488 1,313,330
Gross profit EF 541,129 464,187
Depreciation and amortisation FER#H (3,730) (3,375)
Interest income FE A 14,805 10,699
Profit before income tax I TS 5% Al i 1) 266,190 223,256
Income tax expense PSR X (39,650) (40,297)
Profit for the year F % T 226,540 182,959
Other comprehensive income H 2w 27,698 6,348
Total comprehensive income 2HEKEEE 254,238 189,307
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INVENTORIES 22. #E
Group
REE
As at 31 December
Rt+=A=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=F 2%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Raw materials R 39,751 40,565
Work-in-progress ER G 2,787 6,170
Finished goods BIRK T 34,064 34,575
76,602 81,310

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales amounted to HK$380,508,000 (2012:
HK$288,644,000), which included write back of provision for
inventories of HK$4,363,000 (2012: provision for inventories of
HK$14,541,000).

The gross amount of inventories carried at net realisable value
amounted to approximately HK$24,383,000 (2012:
HK$28,008,000) as at 31 December 2013. Full provision has
been made with regard to these balances.

HWRAERAI MFTAHEXNANFER A E
380,508,000/ ( — T — = fF:
288,644,000/ 7t ) * B IEF H B B & #
43630008 T(ZF—ZF: T EREE
14,541,000 7T) °

RZFE—=F+ZA=+—0 KR
FEMNR 2 FEBEEL /R24,383,000%8 7T

—Z— 4 :28,008,000/57T) 0 WEF
I EE R B 2 BB -
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES
FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS
BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

23

BUEARERRE XX 5
BEMBRLRER 2BRFIEAR
HttEWRE - AARERES

Group Company
AEE P NN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BR+=ZBA=+-—H R+=ZA=+—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-= —E-——-F —ZE-= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT FET T
Current portion B ER
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEWBRIX (M 5F (a)) 350,153 347,855 - -
Bills receivables (Note (b)) TEWZESR (faE b)) 12,508 5,415 - -
Less: provision for impairment & : FEU R IE R (E B
of receivables (K17 ()
(Note (c)) (17,194) (23,522) - -
345,467 329,748 - -
Receivables from payment YRR P RIBEER
processing solutions FREBZEK
business (Note (d)) FRIE (F1 52 () 165,797 175,033 - -
Prepayments, deposits and BENFIE - R
other receivables: N E A R U GRIA
Prepayments A 8,389 8,949 530 562
Deposits e 15,966 16,476 - -
Others Hit 22,222 14,803 739 901
46,577 40,228 1,269 1,463
557,841 545,009 1,269 1,463
Non-current portion FEENEAE
Long-term deposits %S 2,916 2,563 - -
Total att 560,757 547,572 1,269 1,463
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES 23 BUREFREWREREE <XNX5
FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BEBRAREE 2BWHER
BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, HtBWRE - BARERERS
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) (&)

The carrying amounts are approximately their fair values. The FREEEEAFERE  AREZEEER
carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills receivables, HRERERE IR PEEMRREFRE
receivables from payment processing solutions business, other Tz FEN R « Efb pE Uk FRIE - TN IR
receivables, prepayments and deposits and long-term deposits MG ARERZES ZREEATIE
are denominated in the following currencies: T
Group Company
rEE N
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+t=ZRA=+—H R+=ZA=t+—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E2-=F —T——-F ZE-—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET FTHERT FET
HK$ BT 3,326 6,328 530 562
RMB AR 444,211 415,404 - -
JPY H 111,643 123,342 739 901
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) SEPTEE (DRFIHE D) 1,577 2,498 - -
560,757 547,572 1,269 1,463
Note (a): st (a) -
Trade receivables FEUR R R

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range from 0 to 180 days. The ageing
analysis of the trade receivables was as follows:

AEEGTESGEBAZGERHOE180HTE - &
WERFR 2 BRER AT LT -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Current to 90 days BIEIZ= 90 B 272,673 271,850
91 to 180 days 91E180H 21,565 10,499
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H 23,830 10,906
Over 365 days 365 HEA 32,085 54,600
350,153 347,855

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables included retention money receivables
of HK$52,666,000 (2012: HK$68,560,000), which represents approximately 10%
to 20% (2012: approximately 10% to 20%) of the relevant contract sum granted
to certain customers in the PRC that have a retention period of normally one year.
As at 31 December 2013, the retention money receivables aged over 365 days
amounted to HK$22,119,000 (2012: HK$39,592,000).

RZTE—=F+=A=+—8  BUREXSEERRE
4 52,666,0008 70 (—Z— 4 : 68,560,000 7T) * &
BYETHRERFHEBAELORIBLNI0%E20%(ZF
—ZF  H10%E20%)  ZEBRFHNREHR —RKA
—F o oRZTE—=FF+ZA=+—8 " EkKiBA365H
DA ) FE U AR B & £22,119,0008 7T ( =& — — 4 ¢
39,592,000 7T) °
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES
FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS
BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Note (a): (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$39,433,000 (2012:
HK$39,664,000) were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables is as follows:

23

Aok £ T 5 0 % B ik

BUEARERRE XX 5
BEBRAREE 2BWHER
HMEWHIE ANRERERS

(#8)

Mzt (a) - (48)

FEWSBRAK ()
BHERNEZRKFESEETREAEERERERS
MECBURP ENBELR  ZHBABRPZEEE
EARBAEARL  BURHESRIDA 2L - E
BEERRTHERZSERERERER - AEELE
ERZERNTURERSRISEIRIRG -

RZT—=F+=ZA=+—0 ' EUWRHRF39,433,000%&
TL(ZF— =4 : 39,664,000/ 7T) Jy@ BB RFE ° %
FRBERRZ BRERANAT -

As at 31 December

HW+=-—A=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=F —FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Up to 90 days BIEAZ= 90 H - -
91 to 180 days 91£180H 15,255 3,586
181 to 365 days 181%365H 9,859 5,000
Over 365 days 365 HLA E 14,319 31,078
39,433 39,664
Note (b): Bz b)
Bills receivables BRRE

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity dates within six

months.

The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the Group is as follows:

Falling within 90 days

Falling within 91 to 180 days

90 HA
912180 H

ZAERIEDBMABLNANER ZRITAARRE -

FEEEEREZDBABERAT

As at 31 December

Bnt+=—A=+—H
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
3,555 248
8,953 5,167

12,508 5,415
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23

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES
FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS
BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Note (c):

Provision for impairment of receivables

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$17,194,000 (2012:
HK$23,522,000) were impaired. These impaired receivables mainly relate to
individual customers who are delinquent in payment. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

23

BUEARERRE XX 5
BEBRAREE 2BWHER
HMBEWHIE - ANRERERS

(#8)

Wizt (c) -

W RERERE
RZT—=F+=-A=+—08 - B 17,194,000
JL(ZZE—ZF 23,522,000 70) ERE - S ERE
FEMRIEE ZRERBRAFENT AR - 2SR
RZEREE AT -

As at 31 December

BW+=ZA=+—H

2013 2012
T —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
91 to 180 days 91£180H - -
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H - -
Over 365 days 365 HEA 17,194 23,522
17,194 23,522

Movement on the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows: EWFEREREESIT
2013 2012
—F-= S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January w—HA—H 23,522 21,248

(Written back of provision)/provision for impairment of & U 5185 (& (80 B ), #iE

trade receivables (6,644) 2,158
Exchange realignment FEE 3 EE 316 116
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 17,194 23,522

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired
assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

Note (d):

Receivables from payment processing solutions business
This balance mainly represents receivables arising from the payment processing
solutions business.

For processing payments on behalf of merchants, the amounts are usually become
collectible by the Group from the banks or financial institutions once the
underlying transactions of the merchants had been acknowledged by the relevant
banks and financial institutions.

H AR 2 FEUAR TR R Eopth PR SRR R BRI E A E ©

WixE B HMAEY 2 &AEERR T Dl s 8RR
ZHREE - AREWEISH EARRRIERER -

B (d)

XNRBERBRTT REH 2 ERRER
AR I ERINRZRIRIEMRT REBELE 2B
B -

RRREBPUBMZZZEBMAF  BEHSE—RAEP
Z R S ERERIT R SR B RN A mAKER
BRARITH S BB IER -
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES 23 BUWRRREREE ZXTX5
FROM PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BREMRIREBR ZEWRIER
BUSINESS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, HEWHIE  ANRERRE
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) ()
Note (d): (Continued) Mz (d) - (48)
Receivables from payment processing solutions business (Continued) IRARBEREFERFRER 2 BRFE (&)
As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, balances are mainly aged below 90 days and RIB-——FR-F-=F+-_A=+—R0 " ##H2ZK
are denominated in the following currencies. BB R 90 B RIRIA T EHFIE -
2013 2012
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
RMB AR 56,577 54,607
JPY A 109,220 120,426
165,797 175,033
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24 BATEFTARHREEZSH
PROFIT OR LOSS BE
Group Company
TEE RKAF]
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H W+=—HA=+—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —EBE-——F ZE—= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT FET FHIT
Listed securities: EhESE
— Equity securities — BARES
— United States (“U.S.”) — X ([EE]) - 598 - 598
— Equity securities — BARES
— Hong Kong (“H.K.”) — &5 (EE] - 13,350 - 13,350
Total &5t - 13,948 - 13,948
Market value of listed securities FmHzEATHE - 13,948 - 13,948

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
in operating activities as part of changes in working capital in
the consolidated cash flow statement (Note 31(a)).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded as other gains, net, in the
consolidated income statement (Note 5).

The fair values of listed securities are based on their current bid
price in active market.

BAHEF RN RER 2 EBMEETIR
FAREREREINREERL FRE
EBE2HAEH (MFE31) °

BAFAEFAENRERZEREERT
BEZ®  NRARERCHEAEMKEF
#(HEES) »

EHESNATFEREHAERTBNE
BEABHE -
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25 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

Short-term bank deposits of HK$20,428,000 (2012: HK$19,574,000)
represented bank deposits of the Group with original maturities over
three months which are placed as guaranteed deposits for bills
payables and are denominated in RMB.

25 EHIRITER

%2 IR 1T 17 3020,428,0008 T (—Z T — =
F 1 19,574,0008 ) A EEFIEN R
MEFEREZEMREHHAEA=M@AN
E2Z2BITER  WAARKSIE -

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 RERRESEEY
Group Company
rEE AATF
As at 31 December As at 31 December
W+=—A=+-—H R+=—A=+-—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —FT——F ZE-=F —ZT——&
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T
Cash at bank and on hand RITFERRFERE 1,061,136 794,195 29,915 4,147

Included in cash and cash equivalents were HK$171,388,000
(2012: HK$8,635,000) bank deposits with original maturities
within three months which are placed as guaranteed deposits
for bills payables, tenders or deposits designated for settlement
of certain payables in relation to the payment processing
solutions business and are denominated in RMB.

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$724,672,000 (2012: HK$401,978,000) are kept in the bank
accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the remittance
of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

RehE2FEWH171,388,000% 7T (=
T— 4 1 8,635,000/870) IEANEBE B
ENZRMFERERS  HZRATAR
PBRIBBRTRES 2B TRMAFIEES
BEEERZBITER - S RTEREEER
HAAB=EANURA - WAAREIIE -

KEBZEESF4724,672,0008 T (=ZF
— Z4F : 401,978,000/ 7T ) * JhTF BURATE
FERZIBITHAYZIRITRFPA - MBME
& ZSE Ty B INEE |

Re LRSHEBYWIHATIIERHE

currencies:
Group Company
AEH ¥ NN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H W+=A=+—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-= T F =Z=-—= —ET——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT FET FHIT
HK$ BIT 118,836 238,144 24,345 3,054
RMB AR 664,490 262,441 - —
us$ E7T 166,841 165,381 1,069 876
JPY HIE 105,419 123,382 4,501 217
Euro BT 223 213 - -
MOP SRPEE 5,327 4,634 - -
1,061,136 794,195 29,915 4,147
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27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 B
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each
B REE0.0025 BT Z
EER
No. of shares HK$’000
e THETT
Authorised: ERE
As at 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 R-_E——F—HF—H "
and 31 December 2013 -+ R=+—HRE
—T-=F+-A=+—H  4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREAR
As at 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 R-_E——F—H—H-
and 1 January 2013 —E——HF+ZA=1+—HK
—E-=%—H—H 2,673,429,835 6,684
Issuance of shares upon the exercise of — R E A FIFTEE AT AT AR
exchange rights of convertible preference BRMRZ HIREREITEE
shares issued by a subsidiary (Note 34) FREsTTID (HaE 34) 103,404,000 258
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=_A=+—H 2,776,833,835 6,942

Notes:

()

Share options of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees in
order to strive for future developments and expansion of the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Group’s full-time
employees, and Executive and non-Executive Directors. The Scheme
became effective on 29 April 2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that
date.

As at the date of this report, 267,342,983 shares were available for issue
under the scheme.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, no share option
was granted. As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, there is no share option
outstanding.

Wiat

(@)

EATZBRE
RRREE—B T —— FRERE 8 ([ %t
B 5ERS  BERABMES B 2ER A
BAKEREERRIBTER - LAt EIWAER
DHEEOFERE BN TRIE B A RITRIERT
B Lt BN T ——FOA-tThAEXK:
FRIEFZETBIBUBIERT - BRI A% AR +4F
DARBRBAER -

RAMRE BH 267,342,983 B D 1R 18 3% 51 21
A HEEET o

REBE_T——FR-_T—=F+-A=+—8
IEFE - BEE R EAERE R ——F R
ZZ—=F+ZA=+—B BEMNKRTEZE
R #E -
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27 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Employees’ incentive programme

On 1 September 2011, Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited (“Mega Hunt
Microelectronics”), an indirectly owned subsidiary of the Group entered
into six option deeds with certain of directors and employees of Mega
Hunt Microelectronics and its subsidiary. 3,500,000 ordinary shares of
Mega Hunt Microelectronics may be issued upon the exercise of all
options granted under the option deeds at an exercise price of HK$1.00
per share. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the option deeds will
lapse on 1 September 2014.

The option deeds are designed to provide incentive to employees for their
contribution to Mega Hunt Microelectronics. Under the option deeds,
50% of the options shall vest upon the expiry of a period of 12 months
from the date of the option deeds; and the balance of 50% of the options
shall vest upon the expiry of a period of 24 months from the date of the
option deeds. Prior to exercise of the option, the option holders are not
entitled to dividends. There are also no accelerated vesting rights in case
of winding of Mega Hunt Microelectronics.

Up to the date of this report, no options were exercised. Employee share
options expenses of HK$23,000 (2012: HK$79,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement during the year.

27 BRA (@)

Wit - (&)

(b)

EE R E

RZZ——FNA—B  REEWKEZEHRE AR
FKAMEFHR AR (IR EF D) B
BTREMBRAETESEREB /M ER
HEZZHE © 3,500,000 R IK A E F 3 @ AR AT R
BEREZBRLNMABRERTEESR
1.00 BT EITERET - KRB BEHAETH
SN BREZEEN - -NFAA BRI

BREREDAAEERFEFERABETFZR
BRI - RIBFEAERE - 50% iBAE
1 BB R E AR E 1218 A MM ER RS
B BT 50% BRI B B E R E A IR
2418 A ERE WL R - BB EIT AT -
IeRERs A ABARIRAR S - MIEAMEFBE
TR DR BR B AR ©

HEAREAS TEEBRECEITE - RF
A BRERE K& R R E B BRER X 23,000
BT (=T —4 : 79,000 #7T) °
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28 RESERVES 28 f#fE
(@ Group (@ X&EH
Contributed
Share surplus Other  Exchange  Retained
premium  (Note(i))  reserves reserve earnings Total
BHER
RGEE (WEe) HtRE  EiRE  REEF &5t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2013 R-Z-=§-A-H 930,020 168,434 477,302 152,394 891,261 2,619,411
Profit for the year ERER - - - - 30045 30,045
Exchange differences arising on BERNHBAT
translation of the financial HkEEN £
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - 17,717 - 17,717
Fair value gain on revaluationof B[ 4HE
available-for-sale financial assets & @EE 2 AFEKZE
(Note 19) (Hie£19) - - 2,951 - - 2,951
Share of other comprehensive EiE—RBE ARz A
income of an associated company  2FE Y (#fi221)
(Note 21) - - - 11,826 - 11,826
Release of reserves upon dilution  EER—EHLE AT
of interest in an associated BBl 2 E
company (Note 21) (Hzt21) - - - (151) - (151)
Share of other reserve of an Ef—BRERT
associated company Einbi (st 21)
(Note 21) - - 5,858 - - 5,858
Employees’ incentive programme ~ —RHBARZES
of a subsidiary (Note 27(b)) BEE (Wit 27b) - - 23 - - 23
Exercise of exchange rights of I —FARBARETZ
convertible preference shares RRELR EhiE
issued by a subsidiary (Note 34)  (ffi£34) 133,133 - (68,395 - - 64,738
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=F
+=A=+-A 1,063,153 168,434 417,739 181,786 921,306 2,752,418
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28 RESERVES (Continued)

(@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

28 falifR ()
Group (Continued) (@ A&EHE)
Contributed
Share surplus Other  Exchange  Retained
premium  (Note(i)  reserves reserve  earnings Total
EdRH%
Rira®  (MiEo) EtEE  ERRFE  REEF ast
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tz FET TR Tz FET TR
At1 January 2012 RZB--f-f-H 930,020 168,434 509,536 146,289 1,052,024 2,806,303
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - (160,763)  (160,763)
Exchange differences arising on BEBNHBAR
translation of the financial BHRECELES
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - 3,388 - 3,388
Fair value loss on revaluation of BEAHEEE
available-for-sale financial assets ~ £RVEE 7 ATEFE
(Note 19) (Wi 19) - - - - Q774
Share of other comprehensive EfE—FB R R Az fth
income of an associated company  2E Yz (#f5221)
(Note 21) - - - 2,717 - 2,717
Acquisition of 20% equity interest Ui —EHE A
in a subsidiary 20% %= - - (38,257) - - (38,257)
Share of other reserve of an iRl A=W A
associated company Einfi (st 21)
(Note 21) - - 8,720 - - 8,720
Employees’ incentive programme of  —fEHBAT 2 EE
a subsidiary (Note 27(b)) 8 (K 27h) - - 77 - - 77
At 31 December 2012 R-B-=f
+=A=t-H 930,020 168,434 477,302 152,394 891,261 2,619,411
Notes: Hiat -

(ii)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17
October 2001 as set out in the circular to the shareholders of
HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’
net profit to a statutory reserve fund until such fund reaches 50%
of the companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can
be utilised upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the
companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum
of 25% of the companies’ registered capital. As at 31 December
2013, retained earnings comprise of statutory reserve fund
amounting to HK$46,946,000 (2012: HK$43,708,000).

(i)

(i)

AEBZESRBENSEERERA
A =EER)ERTERHA-SF
—ENANBZBEMAE  RER_-F
T-HFtAtTERETZERAEA(E
ADFKEBzsEER EBREER
Bt s BAR - BARBBURIR L DHE
TRMEEZZ8E -

REREBEGARERZ10%DEE
ZETHECEERRBESEE ARG
EXRZ50%  EERFERKERBAER
& A AR RET A 1B S A F)
ZAMER  HRREEEREALER
REIFMERZ25%KF «c R=F—=
F+-P=+—R0 BRBEEE*T
H S 46,946,000 L (=T — =4 :
43,708,000 77T) °
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28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 f#fE (@)
(b) Company (b) EDFH
Share  Contributed Other Accumulated
premium surplus reserves losses Total
R EE BEARH HitE ZitER CH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET TET
At 1 January 2012 R-E--#-A-A 1,157,724 46,417 34623 (121342) 1,117,422
Loss for the year EEER - - - (55,289) (55,289)
Fair value loss on revaluation of sRARLEEHEE
available-for-sale financial asset ZATEER
(Note 19) (et 19) - - (3,000) - (3,000)
At 31 December 2012 R-B-=%
+=ZB=t+-8 1,157,724 46,417 31,623 (176,631) 1,059,133
At 1 January 2013 R-B-=%£-A-A 1,157,724 46,417 31,623 (176,631) 1,059,133
Loss for the year FEBR - - - (81,404) (81,404)
Issuance of shares upon exercise of ~— —Rif{fE A A1 FTETTA MK
exchange rights of convertible st BRI
preference shares issued by BT (Hit34)
a subsidiary (Note 34) 133,133 - - - 133,133
Fair value gain on revaluation of EfHHESRERY
available-for-sale financial asset AFEYE (I 19)
(Note 19) - - 3,200 - 3,200
At 31 December 2013 R-2-=%
+=B=+-B 1,290,857 46417 34,823 (258,035) 1,114,062
Note: B -

(i) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the Reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, a company may make distributions to its members
out of the contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

(i)

AR 2 EHBBIERIEBHETKE 2
M A B A FEEA DR R ]
ZEBTRNEEZZE REBRE
—NN\—FREE - RAAEETER
THEE SR AR B SR A M EL R R

HD K
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29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 29 ENERRRENREE  Z{AXS
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS EERRIRERZ2ENARER
AND OTHER PAYABLES Hih T RRIE

Group Company
KEH AT
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H R+=B=+-—8
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —ET——F ZZET—= —T—=F
HK$/000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FET
Trade payables (Note (a)) FETBRSR (B7T (a) 130,547 131,097 - -
Bills payables (Note (b)) IS 245 (B3 (b)) 27,289 39,479 - -
157,836 170,576
Payables for payment XN GEBRRT R
processing solutions EB 2 ENRIA
business (Note (c)) (K17 () 243,415 136,414 - -
Other payables and accruals — Efth [l {3018 & e 5T 5078
(Note (d)) (K12 (d) 349,578 191,475 10,046 9,373

750,829 498,465 10,046 9,373
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29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 29
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing
solutions business and other payables are denominated in the
following currencies:

Aok £ T 5 0 % B ik

EREREEMERE XS
BEEMAFREEZ2EMARER
HMESRIE @)

ETBRRREN T 2R BETAR
R 2 4 OB RS 5B B0
TSI -

Group Company
A5EH ART
As at 31 December As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—H R+=A=+—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=F ZEBE-——-F =ZEB-=F ZZE—-fF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET FHERT FET
HK$ BT 13,396 16,432 10,046 9,373
RMB AR 659,032 404,751 - -
Us$ e - 156 - -
JPY HI[&] 76,533 77,126 - -
MOP JRPTEE 1,868 - - -
750,829 498,465 10,046 9,373
Note (a): Wit (@) -
Trade payables B R
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the ageing analysis of the trade payables was as REZF-=ZFR-F--F+ZA=1+—H  EHEX
follows: ZERER DT ¢
Group
rEH
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2013 2012
—B-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current to 90 days [EEZE90H 83,392 87,658
91 to 180 days 91180 H 29,653 24,756
181 to 365 days 181E365H 7,934 7,278
Over 365 days 365 AL+ 9,568 11,405
130,547 131,097

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.

EREERTZEERNTF0E180RZMH -
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29

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 29 BENRRRENRE X5
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS BEEBRORRBEZERAREAR
AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) HL BB A FRE (40)
Note (b): IR
Bills payables ENERE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes: BERRITEG ZE
Group
FEE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—~
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Due within 90 days 90 B A% HA 27,289 14,065
Due within 91 to 180 days 91 %180 HW 5 - 25,414
27,289 39,479
Note (c): Htit(c) :
Payables for payment processing solutions business XN RZEBBRTRER 2 ELSHE
This balance represents payables to customers (which are generally merchants as BRERIER AN R SRERRT REBENER (—
detailed in Note 23(d)) for the payment processing solutions business. The WA 23T ZEPE) 23E - BESE MR 30
amounts are generally due for settlement with these customers within 30 days and HAEZERPETHEERMRATESSIE
are denominated in the following currencies:
Group
FEE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2013 2012
—E-= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
RMB AREE 167,488 60,409
JPY H 75,927 76,005
243,415 136,414
Note (d): s (d) -
Other payables and accruals H A FOR R SRR
Group Company
EE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H Rt+ZA=+—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E——F —T—=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FET FAET
Accrued staff costs and pension FERT B TR KR RS HER
obligations 130,090 97,709 9,226 8,191
Deposits and receipt in advance from ke RFELBREFRIE
customers 140,921 31,199 — —
Others Hth 78,567 62,567 820 1,182
349,578 191,475 10,046 9,373
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

30 EEFIEH

BEEAZARHIMITRINSERERAEE
HRARBAEBEERE  BRLEMERE R
Fl— M ERE - RIR AR ERT ST & E R
BEGAREE - HESBOT

As at 31 December

®+=—A=+—H
2013 2012
—E-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAT
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 1218 A& TR 2
after 12 months EERIBEE (332) (424)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled 128 A Az
within 12 months RIEFIEEE 1,037 1,097
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled 1218 A&z
after 12 months RIEFIEEE 540 1,634
Deferred tax liabilities — net EXERIBEE — F58 1,245 2,307

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to

FA- BHERRIARDARE 2 EHREEE

offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) AT BERREERBBE2EHMT
during the year is as follows:
2013 2012
—2-z=f% S
Accelerated  Revaluation Accelerated  Revaluation
tax of intangible tax of intangible
depreciation assets Total  depreciation assets Total
ik i3 mig EW
WERE  BEEf R WENE  AEER At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
iR TER TER TAT TEL TAT
Deferred tax liahilities BEHERR
At 1 January w—R—H 172 2,559 2,731 293 1,570 1,863
Acquisition of a subsidiary i il VN - - - - 2,287 2,287
Credited to the consolidated income BiERARGERIA
statement 99 (1,114) (1,213) (121) (1,338) (1,459
Exchange realignment =R - 59 59 - 40 40
At 31 December RtZA=1+—H 73 1,504 1,577 172 2,559 2,731
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30

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

30 EEMEHR @

2013 2012

—E—= —E—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Deferred tax assets EEBEEE

At 1 January m—H—H (424) (543)
Charged to the consolidated income statement Bira W RNk 99 121
Exchange realignment BEE 3¢, 58 3 (7) (2)
At 31 December Rt+—HA=+—H (332) (424)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward
against future taxable income amounted to HK$866,169,000
(2012: HK$809,885,000). These tax losses have no expiry date
except that HK$670,496,000 will expire from 2013 to 2020
(2012: HK$651,113,000 expire from 2012 to 2019). The
potential deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which
have not been recognised amounted to HK$168,720,000 (2012:
HK$162,685,000).

As at 31 December 2013, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$27,855,000 (2012: HK$26,555,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

BEMIBEEAERBTIERZ=E s
FEBABRERT TSR MAAEE R
HEBIEBRR - RZE—=F+=A
=t—B AEBEBEENIKERRBER
U 2 KRR IAE 18 5 866,169,000 7
JT( == — =4 : 809,885,000 7T ) > &
670,496,000 B TR -E—=FF2 =T
TEHBEMH(ZZ— -9 651,113,000
BITR-ZE——FE2_T-NFHEER)
SN ZEHIEEIBYEER B - K&

ERBEHFEBEERANBEECHEEER
168,720,000 T( — & — — 4

162,685,000 7T) °

R-TZ—Z=ZF+"HA=+—HB BRAE
[ AT R MR E R B2
ARENER A RARRED - B E R AE
)25 T A B Y B 2 ) R B & ) e A TR AN
MREAVBERRELETEHRBAREBLY
27,855,000 7T (=& — =4 : 26,555,000
BT °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31 #HREH
STATEMENT
(@) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax to net @)

cash generated from/(used in) operations

TRERME

BRATBBAIRR,(EE) BEE
B8/ (FR)ZBREHEK

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2013 2012
—E-= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRBIATE M, (E518) 28,056 (175,360)
Adjustments for: HBEE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥1% - 5 L& EITE 40,228 35,966
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE 172 172
Amortisation of leasehold land A& £ 18 6 1,001 1,036
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 5,028 7,291
Share of profit of an associated company JEAh — Bk 2 B A (92,612) (73,616)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BB MEE
equipment ZWa (190) (240)
(Written back of provision)/provision for FEUR PR FURE (BRI HE)
impairment of trade receivables B (6,644) 2,158
(Written back of provision)/provision TE(BERE)  BiE
for inventories (4,363) 14,541
Impairment of intangible assets BIZEERE 11,864 24,600
Loss on dilution of interest in N = NIE £
an associated company #EBE 6,883 -
Employee share option scheme of —fEM B R FIEER
a subsidiary AR RERT B 23 79
Interest received BEWALE (2,342) (4,911)
Finance costs AR A - 1,295
Operating loss before working capital changes &iE& ¢ & )51 2 & & 518 (12,896) (166,989)
Decrease in inventories FER D 11,288 26,402
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills FEUER R - B R
receivables, receivables from payment TNRPERIEBRR
processing solutions business and other ¥ RIGRIE - Hth
receivables, prepayments and deposits N FRIE - TR IR
KAREE D,/ () 15,256 (91,174)
Increase in financial assets BN THER AR S EE
at fair value through profit or loss 2 & REE RN (1,103) (4,201)
Increase in amount due from Fﬂlﬁl flHs 2 2 A
an associated company FRIEIE N (3,364) (42)
Increase in trade and bills payables, JZEHEE%&( WES R
payables for payment processing YRR GEEBEBRRTT R
solutions business and other payables X2 ENRIER
H b fER R IE L A0 252,465 65,225
Increase in amount due to FEH flls 2 2 A
an associated company FIEIE AN 64,919 4,037
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEE (TR 2B 326,565 (166,742)
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31

32

33

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31 GREBEESRERMT &

STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of b)) RESHRERAN HEVE BER

property, plant and equipment comprise:

RIBAETEESE

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2013 2012

—E—= —ET——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Net book amount (Note 16) BREFE (M7t 16) 13 1,008
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - WE MERE

plant and equipment 2 Wss 190 240
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - WE MERE

plant and equipment FRiS3IA 203 1,248

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32 HAREE
As at 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company had no RZEBE—=F+"_A=+—08 &EERK

material contingent liabilities (2012: same).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

ARAEMEARARRE(ZF—=45 : 48
A -

33 RKREHYEAE

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had future aggregate RZEBE—=F+"-A=+—8 &XEER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating T REHE LA AT 2 RRKEEER
leases as follows: RapgEM
Land and buildings
T REF
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—8H
2013 2012
—E-= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Not later than one year TiBiE1F 26,690 28,466
Later than one year and not later than five years  #iE 1 F{ET BB 5 F 15,154 19,896

41,844 48,362
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34 EXERCISE OF EXCHANGE RIGHTS OF
CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES ISSUED BY
A SUBSIDIARY

On 25 January 2013, the Company received an exercise notice
from the preference shareholder (the “SBL Preference
Shareholder”) of Success Bridge Limited (“Success Bridge”), a
subsidiary of the Company, to exercise in full their rights under
the shareholders agreement dated 29 January 2010 entered
among the Company, Success Bridge, and the SBL Preference
Shareholder to exchange all preference shares of Success
Bridge registered in their names for 103,404,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) at the exchange price of
HK$4.5 per Share. As at the date of the exercise notice, the SBL
Preference Shareholder held 900 preference shares of Success
Bridge. Upon completion of this transaction, Success Bridge
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
transaction was completed on 31 January 2013. A debit of
HK$68,395,000 was recognised in other reserve within equity
as a result of this transaction.

34

Aok £ T 5 0 % B ik

ITHE—ERBARRTZARRK
BER2ERE

WN_E—=F—A-+HB  KNQAEE
AN A 7] M & X 7] Success Bridge Limited
(I'Success Bridge ) & 5t f% & 3 ([ SBL1& &
PRARER ) B 2 fTRBA - 2HITRKRE
AN A A] + Success Bridge £2 SBL 2 5t A% 1%
RFsIVB#HA—T—ZTH—-A=-1TNA
ZBRRMBIET 2R - AIRE R (EFRK
458 TTE T 2 & Success Bridge & 5t
M 73 103,404,000 R A8 2 &) 3 & 38 A (A%
1) o RATEE@AN B - SBLIB R ARAR 5
900 & Success Bridge & 5E % © 32 5 7K
1& » Success Bridge K RA R R 2 EME A
Al ZBRHGER_ZE—=F—-—A=+—
B - hIER S EH NS E MG
R B4t 68,395,000 B 7T ©

HK$’000
FET
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest SRR X 2 B 133,391
Carrying value of non-controlling interest acquired FTEE ASEERR i 2 < BREE (64,996)
Debit recognised in equity AR RER 2 AL 68,395
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BELTRS
As at 31 December 2013, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in RIZ-=F+-_A=1+—RH REBR
British Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares. 2 B¥ B 5L il X 32 2 Rich Global Limited #
The remaining 77.78% of the shares are widely held. BARRA22.22%810 88T 77.78% B 17
BARALTREA -
(@) Transactions with related parties during the year: @ FRERETZXS:
Except as disclosed below, the Group has no significant BRTIXEEEN BE-E—=F
transaction with related parties during the year ended TZA=+T—HLEFE  ARELE
31 December 2013 (2012: Nil). EXBREARS(ZF—ZF &) -
2013 2012
—=E—= —F——F
HK$/000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Rental income (Note i) e A (i) 1,042 615
Licence income (Note ii) FERTREUR (K ez ii) 1,164 795
Purchase of EFT-POS terminals BESFIHER
(Note iii) K sim i (e i) 178,263 27,390
Sales of mag-stripe card security SHE LG DN AR A
decoder chips (Note iv) SR (Bt iv) 26,702 467
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(o)

Transactions with related parties during the year:
(Continued)

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

Note iv:

Rental income from an associated company was charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.

Licence income from an associated company was conducted
pursuant to terms and conditions set out in the licence agreement
entered into by the Group and the associated company on 13
April 2012.

Purchase of EFT-POS terminals was transacted pursuant to the
terms and conditions set out in the framework agreements
entered into by the Group and an associated company on 19
December 2012 and 18 April 2012 for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 respectively.

Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips were transacted
pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the agreement
entered into by the Group and an associated company on 21
February 2013.

Balances with an associated company

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

35 BELRXRS®

@ FREREFZZXRS:(H)

B

Hiatii -

Bt atiii -

Kfetiv

RE—MBEARNZBARRAT AR
8877 AR E 2 Bl B URER

RE— S QR 2 B R AR AR
EERBEARARARN_T——FHA
+ = BT 2 R R s L I R
TR UCER -

BB ST TIHE R IR B AR
EEE-MBENRDRRBEE-Z
—=ER-_E-——F+=-A=+—H
LHFEMFIVABA-Z——F+=
At+thBER-_ZT——FMA+NBZ
ERBZFTEIERRMGETRS -

HERIGRMEREER HREAE
BE-HBELRR T —=F_A
Z+— BET S 163 3 A AR B AR A
EITRS o

(b) EEBE DT 2R

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHET
Amount due from an associated company JiE s — Pl 2 A )R IE 3,451 42
Amount due to an associated company JE A5 — A1 BsE = A B 5RIE (69,964) (4,082)

Balances with the associated company are unsecured,
interest-free and under normal commercial terms.

Key management compensation

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
key management compensation is equivalent to the
Directors’ emolument as disclosed in Note 9(a).

RN F 2 BERAEER  TER
RIZ—RBEARIERETE -

(0 EEE
HE—

BEENHE
T—=FR-F-——F+=A

=t—HLEFE TEEEAEMHE
BERME I FREZEEHE
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36 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Issuance of share options of a subsidiary

On 6 January 2014, EE TR ENEBER QA (“Chongging
Jiexing”, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), SXF (a
wholly owned subsidiary of Chongging Jiexing) and several
management (“Eligible Employees”) of SXF entered into a
conditional options agreement pursuant to which Chonggqing
Jiexing and SXF conditionally agreed to grant options to the
Eligible Employees right to subscribe up to 20% of the enlarged
registered and paid up capital of SXF at the exercise price of
RMB1.2 for every RMB1.0 in the enlarged registered and paid
up capital of SXF within a period of 6 months from the date of
grant.

The exercise of the options shall be conditional upon and
subject to the fulfilment and satisfaction of the exercise
condition that each of the Eligible Employees shall have been
under full time employment of SXF for at least 2 years on the
exercise date and the remaining terms of employment under
each of their respective employment contracts with SXF shall
not be less than 36 months from exercise date. The options
were granted on 18 February 2014.

Assuming that all of the Eligible Employees exercise the options
in full, the Eligible Employees will, in aggregate, own 20% of
the enlarged capital of SXF and the Group's interests in SXF will
be diluted from 100% to 80%. The relevant financial impact of
the transaction will be reflected in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ending 31 December
2014.

36

Aok £ T 5 0 % B ik

RERREE
BIT—MHEL T 2 BRE

R-ZZE—NE—A~B EBRETEHE
BAERAR([EELT] AARZENE
ANE) - SXF(EELZ1TTZ2EMBAR])H
SXFETERRAB(EAEREEDEIVAE
BB - Bl EELTTRSXFE
BKHERERNAEREERLBE  aRE
B HBAR 7N A R B8 SXF i % 20% 48 K
LM R SR AR AN - 1T (B B SXFAS I Kt
MRBERATFARBI0OTIEBEARE
1.27C °

AR R TR AR BT RIERR B 7 AT 1T
BIR{TERE  BEAEREEADKA
SXFz2BEEZVWF - BEBHESXFR]
V2 EEBEHFBHGERFHETER
BT LR 36MA - BEERER=-Z
—MFE=-—A+N\BEH -

BETEBEEREERHITEHE 68
EIBE A KA SXFHE A 20% &1 KA
A M ANER B SXF 2 #E 55 1% F7 100% #58
£280% - AEBEHE_Z—NF+_A
=+ RALEFEZEAVBREBEREZ
BRHIMBEVELE -
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated as appropriate, is set as below:

2013 2012 2011
—%-=f CZ%--f ZT—-f%

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TAT TATL

Results E34

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders  #35355 AR5 EF/(B18) 30,045 (160,763)  (255493)
Assets and liabilities BERERE

Total assets AERE 3,576,445 3192299 3,392,509
Total liabilities R (830,469)  (510,914) (453 ,467)
Capital and reserves attributable FARREREA

to the Company's equity holders BERAR @A 2,759,360 2,626,095 2,812,987

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

MEERBERYBRRLIZEABAEINZAS
BBAEREMRFECSAMERAEERGAEE
HEERENT

Year ended 31 December

HET-A=t-ALEE

Continuing

operations
SR
HK$'000
TEL

(190,981)

3,657,369

(489,563)

3,050,460

2010

—T-ZE

Discontinued
operation
B&IE
HK$'000
FiEn

1,041,256

Total

s
HK$'000
TiET

850,275

3,657,369

(489,563)

3,050,460

Continuing
operations
BE
HK$'000
TEL

36,003

1,752,623

(259,908)

1,668,227

2009
—ITHE
(Restated)

(&3))
Discontinued
operation
BEIE
BERR
HK$'000
Fign

49,182

565,707

(142,646)

84,013

Total

At
HK$'000
TAT

85,845

2,318,330

(402,554)

1,752,840




SEMKR(PE)ERAT
HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Website #3E : www.hisun.com.hk

&



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Directors and Senior Management
	Letter from the Board
	Financial Review
	Business Outlook
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Summary Financial Information
	Back Cover

